

# **USER'S GUIDE**



PUB No. 4Y1-8572-030 / 2014

# How to Use This Guide & CD-ROM

# **Start Guide**

You should read this start guide first if this is the first time you are using this printer. The Start Guide describes precautions for using the printer safely and shows you how to prepare the printer (software installation, etc.) before you use it.

## Printer Software (Provided on the CD-ROM)

The CD-ROM contains printer driver and User's Guide.

### Printer Driver

The printer driver is the software for using this product under Windows 7/Windows Vista/ Windows XP.

### User's Guide

This electronic manual describes the basic procedures for using the printer. Specifically, the User's Guide explains the basic print procedures, how to maintain the printer, how to troubleshoot problems, and describes all the features of the printer and printer driver. You can find and display desired information in accordance with the Contents and Index. To view the User's Guide, Adobe Reader/Adobe Acrobat Reader is required. If Adobe Reader/ Adobe Acrobat Reader is not installed in your computer, download it from the website of Adobe Systems Inc. And install it in your computer.

## **Help Functions**

In addition to the Start Guide and the User's Guide, the printer driver provides online Help to find answers to questions about printer features and operations and how to troubleshoot problems while you are using the printer driver.

Click the Help button on the printer driver screens or in the menu bar to open online Help.

# Contents

How to	Use This Guide & CD-ROM	.i
	Start Guide	i
	Printer Software (Provided on the CD-ROM)	i
	Help Functions	i
Before	You Begin	1
	Conventions	1
	Illustrations and Sample Screens	1
	Trademarks	2
	Abbreviations	2
	Request to the Customer	2
	Legal Notice	3
	Legal Limitations on the Usage of Your Product and the Use of Images	s 3
	Product Name	. 3
	CE	. 3
	FCC (Federal Communications Commission)	. 4
1. Befo	ore Using the Printer	5
	1-1 Printer Part Names and Functions	5
	1-1-1. Front/ Right Side View	5
	1-1-2. Left Side /Rear View	7
	1-1-3. Inside the Printer	8
	1-1-4. Operation Panel	. 9
	1-1-5. Online and Sleep Modes	10
	1-2 Connecting the Printer and Computer	11
	1-2-1. Connecting with USB Cable	12

1-2	2-2. Connecting with LAN Cable	13
1-3 Sv	witching the Printer On and Off	14
1-3	3-1. Switching the Printer On	
1-3	3-2. Switching the Printer Off	15
1-4 Pa	aper Loading Procedure	16
1-5 Fo	or the use of Plastic Card	24
2. How to F	Print	31
2-1 He	ow to Make of Print Data	31
2-2 Ca	anceling Print Jobs	34
2-2	2-1.Canceling Print Jobs from the Status Monitor	
2-3 Pa	ausing Printing	35
2-:	3-1 Pause from the Operation Panel	35
2-3	3-2.Cleaning During Pause Stop	
3. How to L	Ise the Printer Driver	39
3-1 O	pening the Printing Preferences Dialog Box	39
3-'	1-1.Opening from the Application Software	
3-	1-2. Opening from the Start Menu	41
3-2 Us	sing the Page Setup Dialog Box	43
3-2	2-1. Registration of Favorites	
3-2	2-2. Deletion of Favorites	
3-2	2-3. Using Print Setting Registered in Favorite	51
3-2	2-4. Paper Size	
3-2	2-5. Custom Paper Size Settings	
3-2	2-6.Paper Type	61
3-2	2-7.Orientation	
2.4	2-8 Check Settings	64

3-2-9.Version Information	65
3-3 Using the Color Dialog Box	66
3-3-1.Color Adjustment	67
3-3-2.Set Print Quality	69
3-3-3.Single Color Setting	70
3-4 Using the Detailed Settings Dialog Box	72
3-4-1.Color Balance	72
3-4-2. Brightness	73
3-4-3. Density	74
3-4-4. Contrast	75
3-4-5. Halftone Process	76
3-4-6. Level Correction	77
3-4-7. Sharpness	
3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box	79
<b>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</b>	<b>79</b> 81
<b>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</b> 3-5-1. Create Form 3-5-2. Overlay Printing	<b>79</b> 81 84
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> </ul>	<b>79</b> 81 84 <b>87</b>
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order</li> </ul>	<b>79</b> 81 84 <b>87</b> 89
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order.</li> <li>3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval.</li> </ul>	<b>79</b> 
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order</li> <li>3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval.</li> <li>3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order</li> <li>3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval.</li> <li>3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box</li> <li>3-7-1. Sleep.</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order</li> <li>3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval.</li> <li>3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box</li> <li>3-7-1. Sleep</li> <li>3-7-2. Sleep Timer Setting</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li></ul>	
<ul> <li>3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box</li> <li>3-5-1. Create Form</li> <li>3-5-2. Overlay Printing.</li> <li>3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box</li> <li>3-6-1. Print Order</li> <li>3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval.</li> <li>3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box</li> <li>3-7-1. Sleep</li> <li>3-7-2. Sleep Timer Setting</li> <li>3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches.</li> <li>3-7-4. Special Settings.</li> </ul>	

4. How to Use the Status Monitor	119
4-1 Displaying the Status Monitor	119
4-1-1. Starting the Status Monitor	119
4-1-2. How to Start and Display the Status Monitor	121
4-2 Using the Status Monitor	124
4-2-1. Viewing the Print Status	125
4-2-2. Viewing the Printer Status	127
4-2-3. Viewing Ink Information	131
4-2-4. Viewing Maintenance Cartridge Information	133
5. Printer Maintenance	135
5-1 Cleaning the Printhead	135
5-1-1. Cleaning	135
5-2 Adjusting the Printhead Position	137
5-3 Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment	153
5-4 Check the Output Setting Value	162
5-5 Replacing Ink Tanks	164
5-6 Replacing the Maintenance Cartridge	171
5-7 Used Ink Tanks	176
5-8 Used Maintenance Cartridge	176
5-9 Cleaning the Printer	177
	404
6. Iroubleshooting	
6-1 Error or Warning Messages	
6-2 When Paper is Jammed	186
6-3 Printer Not Operating Correctly	

6-4 Print Results Are Unsatisfactory	193
7. Appendix	201
7-1 Moving The Printer	201
7-2 Shipping the Printer	205
7-3 Software Uninstallation	209
7-4 Network Utility	211
7-4-1. Toolbar	213
7-4-2. Menu bar	213
7-4-3. Settings	214
7-4-4. Display	
7-4-5. Environmental settings	221
7-4-6. Help	225
Specifications	226
Index	227

# **Before You Begin**

Thank you for purchasing the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D.

Please read this guide before you use the printer so you can fully understand the printer features and learn how to use the printer most efficiently. This guide provides all the information you need to use this printer.

### Conventions

The following marks are used in this guide.

Warning	Indicates a warning concerning operations that may lead to death or injury to persons if not performed correctly. To use the machine safely, always pay attention to these warnings.
Caution	Indicates a caution concerning operations that may lead to injury to persons if not performed correctly. To use the machine safely, always pay attention to these cautions.
Important	Indicates operational requirements and restrictions. Be sure to read these items carefully to operate the machine correctly, and avoid damage to the machine or property.
Note	Indicates a clarification of an operation, or contains additional explanations for a procedure. Reading these notes is highly recommended.
$\bigcirc$	Indicates an operation that must not be performed. Read these items carefully, and make sure not to perform the described operations.

# **Illustrations and Sample Screens**

The illustrations and the sample screens of the printer driver settings in this guide are created with Swiftcolor SCC-4000D in Windows 7. The contents of these printer driver screens and instructions are essentially the same as Windows Vista and Windows XP as well as those for Swiftcolor SCL-4000P; however, explanations are provided when there are minor differences in screen content or procedures.

### Trademarks

- Microsoft and Windows are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
- Adobe and the Adobe logo are trademarks of Adobe Systems, Inc.
- Other brand and product names may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

### Abbreviations

Throughout this document the following abbreviations are used in text.

- Microsoft Windows 8 is abbreviated as "Windows 8".
- Microsoft Windows 7 is abbreviated as "Windows 7".
- Microsoft Windows Vista is abbreviated as "Windows Vista".
- Microsoft Windows XP is abbreviated as "Windows XP".
- Microsoft Windows is abbreviated as "Windows".

### **Request to the Customer**

- Copying this guide or any part of this guide without permission is strictly forbidden.
- The specifications for this printer as well as the software provided with the printer are subject to change without prior notice.
- We have done our best to make this guide as complete and accurate as possible, and we ask you to contact the dealer where you purchased the printer if you find any omissions or mistakes in this document.
- We can accept no responsibility for loss or damages resulting from the use of this printer or its software; please accept this before you use the printer.

## Legal Notice

### Legal Limitations on the Usage of Your Product and the Use of Images

- It is illegal to reproduce currency, bills, negotiable securities and other documents prohibited by law. Reproduction of such items may be subject to criminal prosecution.
- It is illegal to reproduce legal certificates, licenses, and certain public and private documents prohibited from reproduction by law. Reproduction of such items may be subject to criminal prosecution.
- Please note that intellectual property protected by copyright may not be reproduced without the
  express permission of the copyright holder except for personal or household use under limited
  circumstances.

### **Product Name**

SCC-4000D

### CE

This equipment conforms with the essential EMC requirements of EC Directive. We declare that this product conforms with the EMC requirements of EC Directive at nominal mains input 230V, 50 Hz although the rated input of the product is 100 to 240 V, 50/60 Hz. Use of shielded cable is necessary to comply with the technical EMC requirements of EC Directive.

## FCC (Federal Communications Commission)

#### FCC Part 15 Compliance

NOTE: This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instruction manual, may cause interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

**CAUTION:** Changes or modifications to this equipment not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

# **1. Before Using the Printer**

This section describes how to prepare the printer and procedures you should know before you use the printer.

# **1-1 Printer Part Names and Functions**

The name and function of each part is described below.

## 1-1-1. Front/ Right Side View



#### [1] Operation panel

Keys necessary for operation and lamps to indicate the state of printer are provided on this panel.

#### [2] USB port

Connect a USB cable here to connect to the computer.

#### [3] LAN port

Connect a LAN cable here to connect to the computer.

### 1. Before Using the Printer

[4]	Side guide
	Adjust the position of this guide according to the paper width.
[5]	Power socket
	Connect the power cord here.
[6]	Feeder tray
	Load the paper.
[7]	Side guide lever
	Use this lever to move the side guide.
[8]	Ink tank door
	Open this door when replacing ink tanks or opening the upper unit.
[9]	Upper unit
	Open this unit when or removing the paper jammed in the paper feed path or cleaning inside of the machine. Printheads are installed inside .

# 1-1-2. Left Side /Rear View



#### [1] Rating plate

A serial number for identifying the printer is shown on this plate. (The serial number is required when you ask for repair of the printer.)

#### [2] Paper delivery slot

Paper is ejected through this slot.

#### [3] Maintenance cartridge door

Open this door when replacing the maintenance cartridge.

#### [4] Auto stacker

Receives printed paper output from the printer. (The tray lowers automatically in accordance with the loaded amount of printing media.)

#### [5] Thick paper transport lever

It is a lever that is used when you use the thick paper and plastic card.

# 1-1-3. Inside the Printer



#### [1] Transport area

Transports paper. Clean here for paper dust and ink stains.

#### [2] Upper unit open lever

Use this lever to open the upper unit.

#### [3] Ink tank cover

Open it, there is Ink Tank inside.

# 1-1-4. Operation Panel



[1]	TRAY key	
	Use this key to m	ove the feeder tray upward/downward.
[2]	PAUSE key	
	Printing	Pressing this key suspends printing.
	in pause	Pressing this key restarts printing.
[3]	Power key/lamp	
	On	Power-on.
	Blinking	Sleep mode.
	Off	Power-off.
[4]	STATUS lamp	
	On	Online mode.
	Blinking	Data being received (Please confirm a status monitor.).
	Off	Offline mode (Please confirm a status monitor.).
[5]	ERROR lamp	
	On	Operator-call error (Please confirm a status monitor.).

#### 1. Before Using the Printer

Blinking	Fatal error.(Please confirm a status monitor.)	
Off	Normal.(Please confirm a status monitor.)	
Maintenance Cartridge Warning lamp		
On	Full.	
Blinking	Nearly full.	
Off	Sufficient room to collect ink.	
Ink warning lamp		
On	No ink or tank.	
Blinking	Low ink.	
Off	Sufficient ink.	
	Blinking Off Maintenance Car On Blinking Off Ink warning lamp On Blinking Off	

#### Important

- Opening the ink tank door or maintenance cartridge door during printing causes an error and suspends printing. This could result in a failure. Do not open the ink tank door or maintenance cartridge door except when replacing an ink tank or maintenance cartridge or opening/closing the upper unit.
- Never attempt to open the upper unit by force or hit the door. This could damage the printer or result in poor print quality. Always open and close the upper unit slowly.

### 1-1-5. Online and Sleep Modes

- Online mode: This mode can print data from the computer. The STATUS lamp stays lit.
- Sleep mode :
   Power lamp is blinking and the STATUS lamp stays unlit but the printer receives instructions and print data from the computer.

   When print data is received, the printer is automatically placed in the online status to start printing.

Status of the printer	Receive data	Power Lamp	Status Lamp
Online	Printable	Lighting	Lighting
Sleep	Printable	Blinking	OFF

# **1-2 Connecting the Printer and Computer**

The printer is compatible with Hi-Speed USB and LAN.

#### Important

- You can disconnect the USB cable even while the printer and computer are on, but do not disconnect the USB cable in the cases described below. This could prevent the printer from operating normally.
  - While the computer is starting up (until the desktop display appears).
  - While the printer is printing.
  - While you install the printer driver.

To disconnect the USB cable while the computer and the printer are on, disconnect it at the computer or the USB hub. To reconnect the USB cable, wait at least 5 seconds before you connect it again. If you reconnect it immediately, the printer may not operate correctly.



• A USB cable is not provided with the printer. Please prepare a cable that matches the port on your computer.

# 1-2-1. Connecting with USB Cable

Connect the USB cable to the printer and the computer.

First, connect the cable to the printer, then connect it to the computer.



### Note

- If a printer driver has not been installed in the computer to which you want to connect your printer, install it before connecting the USB cable.
- For how to install the printer driver, refer to the Start Guide.

# 1-2-2. Connecting with LAN Cable

Connect the printer to the network (TCP/IP) using a LAN cable.



### Note

- Use a category 5 twisted pair cable.
- Please consult your network administrator when connecting to an office LAN.
- If a printer driver has not been installed in the computer to which you want to connect your printer, install it before connecting the USB cable or LAN cable.
- For how to install the printer driver and connect the printer to the network, refer to the included start guide.

# 1-3 Switching the Printer On and Off

This section explains how to switch the printer on and off.

### 1-3-1. Switching the Printer On

Make sure that the power cable is connected properly, and then turn on the printer.

1

Press the Power key for at least 1 second.

Cleaning is performed and the printer becomes ready for printing. When the printer is in the Online mode, the STATUS lamp stays lit.





• When the printer is in the sleep mode, press the power key to return the printer to online mode. Printer will also wake up from the sleep mode automatically as soon as it starts receiving a print job.

# 1-3-2. Switching the Printer Off

Press the Power key for at least 1 second.



The Power lamp blinks at long intervals, and then the printer is turned off.

### Note

• The Sleep mode can automatically be switched to the power-off state when a predetermined period of time has elapsed without printing.

→ 3-7-2. Sleep Timer Setting (P.96)

#### Important

- When the printer is not used for a long period of time.
  - To prevent paper form discoloring, remove it from the feeder tray. Store the removed paper in a plastic bag or box such that it is not exposed to high temperature, high humidity, and direct sunlight.
  - Disconnect the power cable and interface cable from the printer.

# 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure

This section describes how to load paper.

### Note

- It is recommended that paper exclusively for the color card printer be used. Using nonexclusive paper can cause bled and blurred printing or adversely impact the printer, resulting in troubles.
- When loading paper, check that top surface of the paper stack is not higher than the load limit mark.



1

### Make sure that the power lamp stays lit.

If the power lamp does not stay lit or it is not blinking, press the power key to put the printer in the power-on state.

While raising the side guide lever, move the side guide fully toward you.



Load the paper in the feeder tray.

2

3

Load papers all the way into the point edges of sheets of paper are aligned.



 $\rightarrow$  Paper Feed Direction and Image Orientation (P.29)

### Note

• When loading new paper, flap sheets of paper well and align all edges of sheets of paper.



#### Important

• Do not print on the back of the envelope. A printing failure or other problems may result.

### Note

• When loading envelopes, pull out the auxiliary tray.



- Load envelopes with their outsides (on which an address is printed) up, in such a manner that the sealing portions are closed and pressed against the side guide (rear).
  - $\rightarrow$  Paper Feed Direction and Image Orientation (P.29)
- If sheets of new paper or swelled envelops are loaded as they are, they may not be fed smoothly. When loading sheets of new paper, flap them well and press on swelled envelopes before loading them.



- Flatten curled sheets of paper before loading them.
- The capacity of the feeder lift tray is as follows:

Business Card/ Postcard : 500 sheets (Thickness: 0.245mm or less)

Special heavy paper (Card): 100 sheets (Thickness: 0.76 mm)

Envelope : 100 sheets

When loading paper, check that top surface of the paper stack is not higher than the load limit mark. If a paper feed error occurs, reduce the number of sheets loaded in the tray. 4 While raising the side guide lever, slowly move the side guide until it stops against paper.



#### Important

• Do not press the side guide against the paper stack too strongly. A paper jam can result.

### Press the TRAY key.

The feeder lift tray rises automatically. Wait until it stops rising.



#### Important

• When the feeder lift tray is operating, do not touch it. A failure can result.

6

5

When the status lamp stays lit in green, the printer is ready for printing.

### Note

- When an high-density image is printed or glossy paper is used, the edges of sheets of paper stacked in the auto stacker may not be aligned properly resulting in a paper jam. It is recommended that the printed sheets of paper are frequently removed from the auto stacker.
- If paper is not loaded properly, the error lamp lights and an error message is displayed on the Status Monitor window. Retry loading paper.

#### Important

- When storing paper, put it in a plastic bag and keep it in a place not exposed to direct sunlight or fluorescent light to prevent discoloration, etc. Once you open the package of paper, it is recommended to use the paper as soon as possible.
- Check that the paper size of the actually loaded paper is the same as that selected by the printer driver.
- Do not operate the side guide after the feeder lift tray has risen. It may cause a paper jam.

#### Important

#### To those who use thick paper

To use thick paper, set [Paper form] of the printer driver to [Thick paper] and, pull out the thick paper transport lever in the paper delivery slot.

• Setting the printer driver

On the Page Setup sheet, set [Paper form] to [Thick paper].



#### • Setting the thick paper transport lever



\*Settings for both the printer driver and thick paper transport lever are required. If these are not set properly, an error message is displayed on the Status Monitor window and the printer does not operate.



# 1-5 For the use of Plastic Card

Please follow the following procedure for the plastic card printing. Make sure that printer is switched off.

1 Press the power key for at least 1 second. Auto Stacker lowers automatically.

2

### Load Additional tray to the auto stacker.

Set Additional Tray to Auto Stacker. Push it until it reaches the end.





• When loading 3.5×5.5inch Plastic card, stand the flap of additional tray.



### Note

• When remove Additional Tray, pull and down it as shown in figure.



**3** Turn on the printer. Press the power key.

4

Press down Feeder tray lever to [Plastic].



### Note

• When loading paper media, set Feeder tray lever to [Paper].



5

Open the [Page Setup] sheet in Printer driver and select [Plastic Card] for [Paper Type].

A Page Setup 2 Color	Iverlay Settings 🥖 Advanced Settings 🔀 Utility	_
91.0mm	Eavorites Default Settings	
	Paper Size	•
[]Business Card 91.0 X 55.0m	Quatom raper Size      Matte Coated Paper     Matte Coated Paper     Matte Coated Paper     Glossy Paper	•
	Copies® Inkjet postcard Orientation Plastic card	ion
2	✓ Landscape	
Current Settings: Default Settings	Check Settings( <u>M</u> ) <u>Version Information</u> <u>D</u> efau	ts

### Press TRAY key.

6

The feeder lift tray lowers automatically. Wait until it stops lowering, and then set the plastic card.

 $\rightarrow$  1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)



#### Important

#### To those who use plastic card

To use thick paper or plastic card, set [Page setup] of the printer driver to [Card CR80 plastic 85.6x54.0mm][Card 4.25 x 2.5inch][Card 3.5 x 2.5inch] and, pull out the thick paper transport lever at the paper delivery slot.

• Setting the printer driver

On the Page Setup sheet, set [Paper Size] and [Paper Type] to [Plastic card].





#### • Setting the thick paper transport lever

<ul> <li>When using plastic card (Paper length is less than 57mm)</li> <li>[Card CR80 plastic 85.6x54.0mm]</li> <li>[Card 4.25 x 2.5inch]</li> <li>[Card 3.5 x 2.5inch]</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>When using plastic card (Paper length is 57mm or more)</li> <li>[Card ID-2 105.0 x 74.0mm]</li> <li>[Card ID-3 88.0 x 125.0mm]</li> <li>[Card 3.5 x 5.0inch]</li> <li>[Card 4.0 x 6.0inch]</li> <li>[Card 4.0 x 3.0inch]</li> <li>[Card CR100 98.5 x 67mm]</li> <li>[Card 3.5 x 5.5inch]</li> </ul>		
Pull out the thick paper transport lever in the paper delivery slot.	Push the thick paper transport lever in the paper delivery slot.		
*Settings for both printer driver and thick paper transport lover are required. If these are not act preparity on error measures in			

\*Settings for both printer driver and thick paper transport lever are required. If these are not set properly, an error message is displayed on the Status Monitor window and the printer does not operate.

### Paper Feed Direction and Image Orientation

On this printer, paper is fed from the feeder lift tray located at the right and ejected to the auto stacker located at the left. Note that the paper loading direction and image orientation differ depending on the type of paper. Image orientation can be set on the [Page Setup] sheet in the [Printing Preferences] dialog box of the printer driver.

 $\rightarrow$  3-2-7.Orientation (P.62)





- The set print orientation is shown in the preview window on the [Page Setup] sheet.
- Some types of application software determines the print orientation on its own accord. Be sure to carry out test printing to confirm the print orientation. For more details, refer to the documentation supplied with your application software.
### 1. Before Using the Printer

# 2. How to Print

When the printer is ready to print, create documents using various kinds of application software and print them.

## 2-1 How to Make of Print Data

When a document is created, start printing from the application software.

#### Important

• Keep the printer free from vibration or impact while it prints. Paper jams or printing failures might result.

#### Note

- The printing procedures, Windows button names and so on may differ depending on your application software. Refer to the documentation supplied with your application software as well.
- In printing, set the Windows system standby or the sleep mode setting to "No." To set this option, select [Control Panel] from the [Start] menu of Windows and select [Power Options] to open the [Power Options Properties] window.

# Open the [File] menu in the application software, and then click [Print].

"Print" dialog box appears.

# 2

4

Check that [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D] has been selected in [Printer Setup].

If any other printer name is displayed, select [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D] in [Printer Setup].

### Note

• If your application software supports buttons designed to configure a printer (such as [Advanced Settings] and [Properties]), set the paper type, colors and so on here.

### 3 Specify the number of copies to print.

The number of copies specified here overrides its setting in the [Print Setup] dialog box for the printer driver.

### Check that paper is ready, and then click [Print].

Printing starts.

#### Note

• See "How to Use the Printer Driver" to modify print setting to suit specific purposes.

#### $\rightarrow$ 3. How to Use the Printer Driver (P.39)

- If the application software and the printer driver share the same setup items, such as paper size, print orientation and number of copies, the settings of the application software may govern.
- The print settings that have been configured in an application software are used only for the application. Print settings that are commonly used for various kinds of application software must be configured from [Control Panel] in Windows.

# 2-2 Canceling Print Jobs

Cancels a print job that has been initiated from the computer.

### 2-2-1.Canceling Print Jobs from the Status Monitor

The print job can be canceled by clicking [Cancel Print] in the status monitor.

■ Click [Cancel Print job] in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Status Monitor] window.

The print job is canceled, and the currently printing job and the jobs that are under processing or receiving data in the printer are also abandoned, along with all print data in process in the computer.

0	Status Information
	Printing
Print Status	
Number of Pages:	
Copies:	
Total	Display the details of the selected status
_	Ink Information

#### Note

• If the "Status Monitor" window is not displayed, it should either be minimized in the taskbar or placed in the task tray. Click the taskbar or task tray to open the "Status Monitor" window.

#### $\rightarrow$ 4-1 Displaying the Status Monitor (P.119)

• A print job can be canceled in the "Print Queue" window (the window in which the order of print jobs is registered), as well as in the "Status Monitor" window. For more information, refer to the Windows documentation.

# 2-3 Pausing Printing

The pause function is described below.

Printing can be paused by pressing the [PAUSE] key on the operation panel.

### 2-3-1. Pause from the Operation Panel

Use this function to view the status of printing in progress or perform cleaning.

Press the [PAUSE] key on the operation panel while printing is in progress.



### The printer pauses.

2

Press the [PAUSE] key again to release the printer from the pause and resume printing at the point of interruption.

35

### 2-3-2.Cleaning During Pause Stop

#### Important

- Cleaning from the "Status Monitor" window is enabled only while the printer pauses.
- The [Utilities] sheet is not available while the printer pauses.

1

Cleaning can be performed while the printer pauses. Click the [Cleaning] menu in the "Status Monitor" window and select "Light Cleaning", "Medium Cleaning" or "Strong Cleaning"select.

Start View	Cleaning Help
F	Light Cleaning Medium Cleaning Strong Cleaning(F)
Print Status Number of I Copies: Total	ages:          Display the details of the selected status         Ink Information         Ink Information
Cance	Print Job Maintenance cartridge information

Clean the ink nozzles to prevent them from clogging.

Perform cleaning by selecting "Light Cleaning", "Medium Cleaning" or "Strong Cleaning" in considering the print results.

Light Cleaning	Recovery operation performed first when printhead nozzle clogging occurs. (Repeat this operation as required.)
Medium Cleaning	Recovery operation performed when printhead nozzle clogging occurs even after light cleaning is performed. (Repeat this operation as required.)
Strong Cleaning	Recovery operation performed when printhead nozzle clogging occurs even after Medium cleaning is performed. (Repeat this operation as required.)

#### Important

- While cleaning is in progress, do not perform any other operation.
- Cleaning cannot be done during a print job or when an error is occurring.
- If Strong cleaning fails to solve the problem, the printhead may require replacement, or there could be some other problem. Follow the troubleshooting procedure and if the problem is not solved after it, contact dealer.
- Please remember that cleaning consumes ink. Clean the printhead only when necessary.

# 3. How to Use the Printer Driver

This section describes the function of the each item in the printer driver dialog box.

## **3-1 Opening the Printing Preferences Dialog Box**

Open the [Printing Preferences] dialog box for the printer driver to configure various print functions. The [Printing Preferences] dialog box can be opened in two ways: open it from application software and from the [Start] menu in Windows.

#### Note

- The print settings that are set in the [Properties] dialog box opened from application software are only used for that application software.
- Set the print settings that are commonly used for various kinds of application software from the [Start] menu in Windows.
  - → 3-1-2. Opening from the Start Menu (P.41) 3-1-2. Opening from the Start Menu (P.41)

### **3-1-1.**Opening from the Application Software

To open [Printing Preferences] from the application software in use, select [Print] and then [Properties].

- 1 Open the [File] menu in the application software, and click [Print...].
- 2 Select [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D] in [Printer Name] and click [Properties].

### 5 [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printing Preferences] window appears.



### Note

- The method of opening the [Properties] dialog box varies with the kind of application software. For more information, refer to the instruction manual supplied with your application software.
- The [Printing Preferences] dialog box, when opened from the application software, contains the [Utility] tab. Click this tab to open the Utility sheet in which cleaning such as Printhead cleaning can be performed.
- The [Utility] sheet that is opened from the [Printing Preferences] dialog box and the [Utility] sheet that is opened from the [Printer Properties] dialog box differ in the repertoire of items that can be set.
  - $\rightarrow$  3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box (P.91)

### **3-1-2.** Opening from the Start Menu

To set up print, open the [Printing Preferences] or [Printer Properties] dialog box from the [Start] menu in Windows.

Use this option to register common settings, regardless of the kind of application software used.

1

Click [Start] and then click [Devices and Printers].



### Note

- With Windows Vista, click [Start] and select [Printers] from [Hardware and Sound] in [Control Panel].
- With Windows XP, click [Start] and select [Printer and FAX].

# 2 Right-click on the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D] Printer icon and select [Printing Preferences].

[Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printing Preferences] dialog box appears.

AJ Page Setup 🧨 Color 🔝 Over	lay Settings   🥖 Advanced Se	ttings 🔀 Utility
91.0mm	Eavorites	Default Settings
12		Register/Delete
5.0mm	Paper Size	•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm
•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm		Qustom Paper Size
	Paper Type(K)	Matte Coated Paper
	Copies(N)	1 🚔 Copies (1 - 9999)
	Orientation           Image: Orientation         Image: Orientation           Image: Orientation         Image: Orientation	180-degree Rotation
-	🛃 🔘 Landscape	
Current Settings: Default Settings	Check Settin	ngs( <u>M</u> ) Version Information

### Note

• The [Printing Preferences] dialog box can also be opened by clicking [Preferences] in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box.

aeneral Sharin	g Ports Advanced	Color Management	t Security 🔀 Utility	Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printing Prefe	rences	
-	Swiftcolor SCC-4000	D		Page Setup 2 Color 53 Overla	y Settings   🚣 Advanced	Settings 🛛 💥 Utility
Location:				91.0mm	S Eavorites	Default Settings
<u>C</u> omment:				55.0mm	Paper Size	Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm
				+Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	Paper Type(6)	Qustom Paper Size
M <u>o</u> del: Features	Swiftcolor SCC-4000	D			Copies(N)	1 💼 Copies (1 - 9999)
Color: Yes Double-sid	ed: No	Paper availab	ard 91.0 × 55.0mm	R	Orientation	180-degree Botation
Staple: No Speed: 100	ppm	o sinces e			< 🔘 Landscap	
Maximum	resolution: 1200 dpi			Current Settings: Default Settings	Check Se	tings(M) [Version Information] [ Defaults
	Pr	eferences	Print Test Page		ОК	Cancel Apply Help

# **3-2 Using the Page Setup Dialog Box**

#### The [Page Setup] sheet is described below.

The [Page Setup] sheet in the [Printing Preferences] dialog box allows you to set paper settings, such as the number of copies to print and the orientation of printing.

Register/Delete
1.0 × 55 0mm -
Custom Paper Size
per 🔹
Copies (1 - 9999)
180-degree Botation

#### [1] Paper Size Preview

The currently set paper size is displayed in a preview.

#### [2] Print Orientation Preview

The currently set paper orientation for printing is displayed in a preview.

#### [3] Favorites

Register commonly used print settings.

→ 3-2-3. Using Print Setting Registered in Favorite (P.51)

#### [4] **Register/Delete**

Set a paper size.

Register or delete Favorites.

 $\rightarrow$  3-2-1. Registration of Favorites (P.45)

 $\rightarrow$  3-2-2. Deletion of Favorites (P.48)

[5] Paper Size

 $\rightarrow$  3-2-4. Paper Size (P.53)

#### 3. How to Use the Printer Driver

[6]	Custom Paper Size		
	Set an optional paper size.	$\rightarrow$	3-2-5. Custom Paper Size Settings (P.56)
[7]	Paper Type		
	Set a paper type.	$\rightarrow$	3-2-6.Paper Type (P.61)
[8]	Copies		
	Set the number of copies to print.		
[9]	Orientation		
	Set the orientation of printing on the paper.	$\rightarrow$	3-2-7.Orientation (P.62)
[10]	Check Settings		
	Displays the current print settings.	$\rightarrow$	3-2-8.Check Settings (P.64)
	Version Information		
	Displays version information on the printer driver and the information about the currently connected printer.	$\rightarrow$	3-2-9.Version Information (P.65)
	Defaults		
	Reset the [Page Setup] sheet to its defaults.		

#### Note

- If [Printer Properties] has been opened from application software, the settings cannot be registered or deleted. To register or delete settings, open the [Print Setup] dialog box from the [Start] menu in Windows.
  - $\rightarrow$  3-1-2. Opening from the Start Menu (P.41)

### **3-2-1. Registration of Favorites**

Up to 10 Favorites can be registered. Favorites, once registered, are imported by simply selecting them from a list, so that print jobs can always be executed with the same set of print settings.

#### Note

 If [Printer Properties] has been opened from application software, the settings cannot be registered or deleted. To register or delete settings, open the [Printing Preferences] dialog box from the [Start] menu in Windows.

 $\rightarrow$  3-1-2. Opening from the Start Menu (P.41)

# 1

Set the data to be registered in the [Page Setup] sheet, [Color] sheet and [Advanced Settings] sheet.

Click the [Page Setup] tab, the [Color] tab and the [Advanced Settings] tab to open the respective sheets for setup.

#### Note

• If a paper size different from the default size needs to be registered in the [Page Setup] sheet, set the desired paper size at user paper setup and have registered beforehand.

→ 3-2-5. Custom Paper Size Settings (P.56)

# 2

The [Page Setup] sheet appears again.

Check that [Current Settings] has been selected in [Favorites].



# 3 Click [Register/Delete].

The [Register and Delete Settings] dialog box appears.



4

Type an optional name in the [Setting File Name] box and, on confirming [setting Contents], click [Register].

etting Register List	Setting File Name			
Item Names	Card_01			
Current Setting:	s Change Name			
etting Contents(L)	<u>Register</u> Delete			
Item Names	Set Values	*		
1 Paper Size	•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	1		
Paper Type	Matte Coated Paper			
Copies	1			
Orientation	Portrait	-		
180-degree	Off	1		
Color Adjust	Photo			
Set Print Qu	Input resolution 1200dpi			
Single Color	Off			
Selected Color	4	1		
Set Pinpoint	Off			
Color Balance	Cyan : 0 Magenta : 0 Yellow: 0 Black : 0			
Half-tone Pro	Error Diffusion			
Brightness	Normal			
Sharpness	0			
Density	0			
Contract	n	1		
•		_		

#### Note

- The entry of a name is required. Space and tab characters are not allowed in the name. The name can be up to 16 single- and double-byte characters long.
- New names cannot be registered at the position in [Current Settings] and [Default Settings]. A new entered name is added.

5

When the registration confirmation dialog box appears, click [Yes].



6 Confirm [Setting Contents] and click [OK].

Check that the registered name has been added in [Favorites].



# 8 Click [Apply] and then click [OK].

The print setting is registered in [Favorites].

### Note

• To rename registered print settings, select the name of an item to edit from [Favorites] and click [Register/Delete]. Rename the item in [Set Name] in the [Register and Delete Settings] dialog box and click [Register].

### **3-2-2. Deletion of Favorites**

Delete the settings registered in [Favorites].

Click [Register/Delete] in [Favorites].



# 2

Select the setting to delete from the [Setting Register List] in the [Register and Delete Settings] dialog box and click [Delete].

Setting Register List	Setting File <u>N</u> ame	
Item Names	Card_01	
Current Settings	Change Name	
Card_01		
	Register	<u>)</u> elete
Setting Contents(L)		
Item Names	Set Values	*
1 Paper Size	•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	
1 Paper Type	Matte Coated Paper	
Copies	1	
A Orientation	Portrait	-
Choncaton		
180-degree	Off	
180-degree	Off Photo	1
A Color Adjust Set Print Qu	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi	
Color Adjust     Set Print Qu     Single Color	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi Off	
<ul> <li>Solicitation</li> <li>180-degree</li> <li>Color Adjust</li> <li>Set Print Qu</li> <li>Single Color</li> <li>Selected Color</li> </ul>	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi Off	
<ul> <li>Iso-degree</li> <li>Color Adjust</li> <li>Set Print Qu</li> <li>Single Color</li> <li>Selected Color</li> <li>Set Pinpoint</li> </ul>	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi Off Off	
<ul> <li>Sinchedori</li> <li>180-degree</li> <li>Color Adjust</li> <li>Set Print Qu</li> <li>Single Color</li> <li>Selected Color</li> <li>Set Pinpoint</li> <li>Color Balance</li> </ul>	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi Off Off Cyan: 0 Magenta: 0 Yellow: 0 Black: 0	
<ul> <li>Sinchedorf</li> <li>180-degree</li> <li>Color Adjust</li> <li>Set Print Qu</li> <li>Single Color</li> <li>Selected Color</li> <li>Set Pinpoint</li> <li>Color Balance</li> <li>Half-tone Pro</li> </ul>	Off Photo Input resolution 1200dpi Off Off Cyan : 0 Magenta : 0 Yellow: 0 Black : 0 Error Diffusion	

### When the confirmation window opens, click [Yes].



4

3

The registered setting is deleted from [Setting Register List].

Check that the print setting has been deleted and click [OK].

etting Register List	Setting File <u>N</u> ame	Setting File Name		
Item Names				
Current Settings	Change Name			
Default Settings	Criange Home			
_	<u>R</u> egister <u>D</u> ele	ste		
Setting Contents(L)				
Item Names	Set Values	-		
T Paper Size	Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm			
1 Paper Type	Matte Coated Paper			
Copies	1			
Orientation	Portrait	-		
180-degree	Off			
Color Adjust	Photo			
Set Print Qu	Input resolution 1200dpi			
Single Color	Off			
Selected Color	4	-		
Set Pinpoint	Off			
Color Balance	Cyan : 0 Magenta : 0 Yellow: 0 Black : 0			
Half-tone Pro	Error Diffusion			
Brightness	Normal			
Sharpness	0			
Density	0			
Contract	n			
	III	1		

## 3-2-3. Using Print Setting Registered in Favorite

Printing can be performed using the print settings registered in [Favorites]. The print settings registered in [Favorites] are imported by simply selecting them from a list, so that print jobs can always be executed with a desired set of print settings.

1

### Select the print settings to use from [Favorites] and click.

Imports print settings.

Page Setup	Color 2	E Overlay Settings	<u> Advanced S</u>	Settings 🖇	🔾 Utility	_
9	1.0mm	s S	<u>F</u> avorites		Card_01	ngs Igs
-		550mm	Paper <u>S</u> ize	•Busine	Card_01	Dmm 🔻
•Business Ca	ard 91.0 × !	55.0mm	Paper Type(K)	Matte C	oated Paper	Paper Size
	A A	Orient	Copies( <u>N</u> ) ation A @ <u>P</u> ortrait		1 Copies	(1 - 9999) degree <u>R</u> otation
Z			Candscape			
Current Settings: )	Card_01		Check Set	tings( <u>M</u> )	Version Information	<u>D</u> efaults

### Note

- Click [Check Settings] to view the current print settings.
- Select [Default Settings] to reset the printer to the state in which it had been when the printer driver was installed (or the state in which no changes have been made to the settings).

#### Default Settings

Sheet	Item	Settings
Page Setup	Favorites	Default settings
	Paper Size	Business Card 91.0 × 55.0 mm
	Paper Type	Matte Coated Paper
	Copies	1
	Orientation	Portrait
	180-degree	Off
Color	Color Adjustment	Photo
	Set Print Quality	Input resolution 1200dpi
	Single color Settings	Off
	Selected Color	-
	Pinpoint Color Matches	Off
	Color Balance*	Bk/C/M/Y All 0
	Half-tone Process*	Error Diffusion
	Brightness *	Normal
	Sharpness*	0 (None)
	Density *	0
	Contrast *	0
	Level Correction*	Off
Overlay Settings	Overlay	Off
	Print Mode	-
	Preview	-
	Comment	-
	Print the overlay with	_
	simple setting	-
Advanced	Layout	None
Settings	Frame Printing	Off
	Print Order	Ascend
	Paper feed interval	0 sec

\*Items in the [Detailed Settings] dialog box.

# 3-2-4. Paper Size

### In [Paper Size], select the size of paper on which to print.

[Paper Size] is selectable from the following choices:

y Page Setup	or 🤔 Over	lay Settings 🧹 Advanced S	Settings 🛠 Utility
91.0mm		Eavorites	Default Settings
	SI SI		Register/Delete
	Omn	Panar Cita	[]Business Card 91.0 X 55.0mm
Size 9,10 mm x550 mm 20	m mm, 1.5 mm	(left/top and right/botton	Chara CR80 Paper 85 6 X 54 Drm           Card CR80 Paper 85 6 X 54 Drm           Card CR80 Pasic 85 6X54 Drm           Card D-2 105 0 X 74 Drm           Card D-3 88 0 X 125 Drm           Card D-3 88 0 X 125 Drm           Card D-3 88 0 X 125 Drm           Card A 0 X 3.0nch           Card 4.0 X 3.0nch           Card 4.0 X 3.0nch           Card 4.0 X 3.0nch           Card 4.0 X 5.5 Ench           Card 4.0 0 95 X 5.7mm           Postcard 100 y 148 Drm           Prostcard 100 X 148 Drm           Envisiope No 10 104 820 Jmm           Envisiope Di 110.0 X 220 Jmm           Envisiope Di 110.0 X 220 Jmm
Default Settings:		Check Set	ttings( <u>M</u> ) Version Information Defaults

#### [Standard label paper]

	Shape of Dapor Size		Margins (mm)			
Paper Size	Media	(W×L) mm	Top Margin	Bottom Margin	Left Margin	Right Margin
Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	Card	91.0 × 55.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Business Card US 89.0 × 51.0mm	Card	89.0 × 51.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card CR80 Paper 85.6 × 54.0mm	Card	85.6 × 54.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card CR80 Plastic 85.6 × 54.0mm	Card	85.6 × 54.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card ID-2 105.0 x 74.0mm	Card	105.0 x 74.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card ID-3 88.0 x 125.0mm	Card	88.0 x 125.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card 3.5 x 5.0inch	Card	88.9 x 127.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card 4.0 x 6.0inch	Card	101.6 x 152.4	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card 4.0 x 3.0inch	Card	101.6 x 76.2	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card 4.25 x 2.5inch	Card	108.0 x 63.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0

Card 3.5 x 2.5inch	Card	88.9 x 63.5	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card CR100 98.5 x 67mm	Card	98.5 x 67.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Card 3.5 x 5.5inch	Card	88.9 x 139.7	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Postcard 100.0 × 148.0 mm	Postcard	100.0 × 148.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Envelope No.10 104.8 × 241.3mm	Envelope	104.8 × 241.3	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0
Envelope C6 114.0 × 162.0mm	Envelope	114.0 × 162.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	4.2
Envelope DL 110.0 × 220.0 mm	Envelope	110.0 × 220.0	1.5	1.5	2.0	2.0

\*Seven standard paper sizes are registered in advance.

### Note

• The current paper size can be identified in a preview.



#### Customize

Any paper size of your choice can be set.

Unlike user-definable paper sizes, paper sizes can be set temporarily from the [Print Setup] dialog box, though the paper names cannot be changed.



	Chang of	Dener Cize		Margin	s (mm)	
Paper Size	Media	(W×L) mm	Top Margin	Bottom Margin	Left Margin	Right Margin
Customize		100.0 × 148.0	1.5	1.5	2.2	2.2



• The setting of [Customize] that has been entered by opening the [Printing Preferences] dialog box from application software is erased at the same time as the software is closed.

### **3-2-5.** Custom Paper Size Settings

If the desired paper size is not found in [Paper Size], set a new paper size in [Custom Paper Size Settings].

Up to 50 different paper sizes can be registered in [Custom Paper Size Settings]. In addition, preregistered standard label paper sizes may also be modified as desired and newly registered.

### Note

- "Paper Size Name", "Width", "Length", "Display Unit", "Paper Shape" and "Margins" can be registered.
- Because the standard paper name cannot be changed, register the custom paper under a different name.

# 1

Select the basic paper size from [Paper Sizes List].



# 2

Enter or select the "Name," "Width," "Length," "Margin," "Display Unit" and "Paper Form" items in the [Custom Paper] field.

Paper Sze List[2]	Cutton Paper Name@0	Daplay Units		Name(N)	X000X	Display Units	M Oncho
Business Card 9: 31.0x55.0     Business Card 89.0x51.0     Card CR00 Pap. 85.6x54.0     Card CR10 21050105.0/74.0     Card ID-21050105.0/74.0     Card ID-318.0     Business Card Card Card Card Card Card Card Card	Width (30)         910 [1]         mm (85.0 ~ 120.0)           Langth (b)         55.0 [1]         mm (48.0 ~ 300.0)           S10 mm         57.0 mm	Paper Form() (Paper +		Width(W)	31.0 mm (85.0 ~ 120.0) 55.0 mm (49.0 ~ 300.0)	Paper Form(Q)	Paper Poser Thick paper Envelope Cavel (20-30m)
© Card 0 X 5 0n.         10 for 55.24           © Card 0 X 3 N.         10 ch/32           © Card 2 X 3 X 25.         100 ch/33           © Card 3 X 3 X 26.         18 ch/33           © Card 3 X 3 X 26.         18 ch/33           © Card 3 X 3 X 26.         18 ch/33           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Card 3 X 3 X 36.         18 sh/31           © Frequep Ch 1         14 ch/14.0           © Errolego Ch 1         110 ch/20.0           © Cutemax         31 0.55.0		Fig Mage() 13 ⊴lim Lat Nape() = 20 ⊗lim Biton Nape() 13 ⊴lim	⇔			S.Omm	Top Margin(1) 1.5 (-) mm ett Margin(1) Föglet Margin(2) 2.0 (-) mm 2.0 (-) mm Bottom Margin(3) 1.5 (-) mm
Quintar		Register		₩	Lixxxxxx		

Name	Enter a new paper name. The name can be up to 15 single-byte and double-byte characters long.				
WxL	Enter a numeric value within the allowable range.				
Display Unit	Either mm or inch ca	ither mm or inch can be set.			
Shape of Media	Paper	Thickness: 0.21 mm - 0.27mm	Business Card/ Business Card US/ Card/ Postcard		
	Card(20-30mil)	Thickness: 0.5 mm - 0.75mm	Plastic card		
	Envelope	Maximum overall paper thickness: 0.28 mm - 0.45mm	No.10/C6/DL		
	Thick paper	Thickness 0.76mm	Business Card/ Business Card US/ Card/ Postcard		
Margins	Enter top and botton	n and left and right margins.			

Change of Media	Paper/Thick paper/Card(20-30mil)			Envelope
Shape of Media	Minimum	Maximum	Minimum	Maximum
Paper Width	85.0	120.0	85.0	120.0
(inch)	(3.2)	(4.7)	(3.2)	(4.7)
Paper Length	49.0	300.0	73.0	270.0
(inch)	(1.9)	(11.8)	(2.9)	(10.6)
Top margin	1.5	Paper Length - 3mm	1.5	Paper Length - 3mm
(inch)	(0.06)	- Bottom margin	(0.06)	- Bottom margin
Bottom margin	1.5	Paper Length - 3mm	1.5	Paper Length - 3mm
(inch)	(0.06)	- Top margin	(0.06)	- Top margin
Left margin	2.0	Paper Width - 3mm	2.0	Paper Width - 3mm
(inch)	(0.06)	- Right margin	(0.1)	- Right margin
Right margin	2.0	Paper Width - 3mm	2.0	Paper Width - 3mm
(inch)	(0.06)	- Left margin	(0.1)	- Left margin

#### [Acceptable custom paper size range]



### Paper setup confirmation diagram



• Using a wrong size of paper can stain the transport area for ink.

# 3 When entire entry is completed, click [Register].





Click [Yes].



5

Check that the paper name as entered is displayed in the list in [Paper Size List] and click [OK].



## 3-2-6.Paper Type

In [Paper Type], select the type of paper to print on.



Matte Coated Paper	Non-glossy paper that fits into a broad range of applications, such as regular printing.
Glossy paper	Choose when you select Glossy paper to print.
Inkjet postcard	Choose when you select Inkjetpostcard to print.
Envelope	Choose when you select Envelope to print.
Plastic Card	Choose when you select Plastic card to print.



• Remember that, if a paper type that is not supported by the printer is selected in [Paper Type], correct print results would be unpredictable.

### 3-2-7.Orientation

In [Orientation], select the direction in which to print documents.



The results of printing of the following kind of document are assumed in the descriptions of the settings that follow.



#### Portrait

Select this option to print the document rotated 90 degrees to the right in relation to the direction of paper feeding.



Direction of paper feed



#### Landscape

Select this option to print the document horizontally in relation to the direction of paper feeding.



#### 180-degree Rotation

Check this check box to print a document set for [Portrait] or [Landscape] rotated 180 degrees.

Portrait/rotated 180 degrees

Direction of paper feed

Landscape/rotated 180 degrees



Direction of paper feed





• The current printing direction can be identified in a preview.



### **3-2-8.Check Settings**

Click [Check Settings] to confirm the current paper settings.



### Note

• The [Copy] in [Check Settings] is used to copy the current settings to the clipboard in the OS.

# 3-2-9.Version Information

Information such as version and copyright on the printer driver can be confirmed. Click [Version Information] to open the [Version Info] dialog box.

Driver Information	
Microsoft Windows Swiftcolor SCC-400 Version 0.02 Copyright CANON All Rights Reserved	XP / VISTA / 7 IOD FINETECH INC. 2013 J.
Printer Information	-
Serial Number:	
ROM Version :	
	Obtain Printer Information

Click [Obtain Printer Information] to get information on the printer connected.

### Note

- Serial number: Printer serial number
- ROM Version: Printer ROM version
- Printer information may not be collected depending on the status of printer connection.
  - Not connected to the printer.
  - Telecommunications lines or networks are busy.
# **3-3 Using the Color Dialog Box**

### The [Color] sheet is described below.

The [Color] sheet is used to set print picture quality and colors.



#### [1] Paper Size Preview

The currently set paper size is displayed in a preview.

### [2] Print image of print data reflecting changes to the settings

A print image of the print data that has been subjected to color adjustment is displayed in a preview.

#### [3] Color Adjustment

Specify the optimal method of color processing using the driver's color correction function.

#### [4] Set Print Quality

Select an input resolution between [Input resolution 1200dpi] and [Input resolution 600dpi].

- $\rightarrow$  3-3-1.Color Adjustment (P.67)
- $\rightarrow$  3-3-2.Set Print Quality (P.69)

[5]	Single Color Setting	
	Prints color image data in a specified single color.	$\rightarrow$ 3-3-3.Single Color Setting (P.70)
[6]	Set Special Color	
	Special Color Registration must have been completed in the [Utility] sheet to import.	$\rightarrow$ 3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches (P.99)
	Detailed Setting	
	Set [Color Balance], [Brightness], [Density], [Contrast], [Halftone Process], [Level Correction] and [Sharpness].	<ul> <li>→ 3-4 Using the Detailed Settings</li> <li>Dialog Box (P.72)</li> </ul>
	Defaults	
	Reset [Color] to its defaults.	

# 3-3-1.Color Adjustment

[Color Adjustment] adjusts the tint to suit documents. When printing a landscape or portrait picture, select "Photo" in [Color Adjustment].

[Color Adjustment] is selectable from the following four items:

91.Omm	-	Color Adjustment Adjustment Method	Photo Photo		
5.0mm	5.0mm	_	No color adjustr	ent	_
[]Business Card 91.0 X 55.	.Omm		Set Print Quality	nput resolution 1200d	pi
		Single Color Setting	9		
		🛈 🔘 Zebra	0	0 <u>O</u> cean	
		O Ash	•	Eorest	
		e Rose	0	Shout(Y)	
1234567	-	😑 💿 Synset	0	📑 <u>N</u> ostalgia	
Current Settings:	-				

#### Photo

Select for printing photographic images.

### Use ICM

Select this option to correct colors using the Windows color correction function of ICM (Image Color Management).

#### No color adjustment

No color adjustment.

#### Important

• When [Color Adjustment] is set to [Use ICM], [Set Pinpoint Color Matches] in the [Utility] sheet cannot be used. To use [Set Pinpoint Color Matches], select an option other than [Use ICM].

→ 3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches (P.99)

### Note

- If print data includes both photographics and graphics, select "Photo."
- If [Use ICM] has been selected in [Color Adjustment], [Brightness] in [Detailed Settings] would appear grayed and would not be functional.

# 3-3-2.Set Print Quality

Set the print quality.

91.0mm 95.0mm	Col Ad	or Adjustment justment Metho	d Photo	
•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm Print Image After Changing Settings		Single Color Sett	Set Print Quality	Input resolution 1200dpi Input resolution 600dpi Input resolution 1200dpi
	0	② Zebra	e	0 Qcean
	0	Ash	•	Eorest
	0	Rose	e	Shout (Y)
1234567	0	Sunset	e	<u>N</u> ostalgia
Current Settings: Default Settings	Set Pin	point Color Mate	thes(P) Detailer	Settings Defaults

Input resolution 1200dpi	Prints at 1200X1200dpi	Prints data after processing it for a resolution of 1200 × 1200 dpi.
Input resolution 600dpi	Prints at 600X600dpi	Prints data after processing it for a resolution of 600 × 600 dpi. (Speed priority)

## **3-3-3.Single Color Setting**

[Single Color Setting] prints multi-colored documents in a single color.

91 Onim		<b>Color Adjustment</b> Adjuntmont Method	Photo	
•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm Print Image After Changing Settings		5	Set Print Quality	nput resolution 1200dpi
0	9 🗹	Single Color Setting		
	C	i <u>Z</u> ebra	0	© <u>O</u> cean
	€	Ash	0	© Eorest
		Bose	0	Shout()
1234567	-	Synset	0	© Nostalgia

To print in a single color, click the [Single Color Setting] check box and check-select the color to use. To cancel the single color option, uncheck [Single Color Setting].

Zebra	Prints in Black and White only.	Prints using Black ink only.
Ash	Prints in a Gray single color.	
Rose	Prints sin a Red single color.	
Sunset	Prints in a Purple single color.	
Ocean	Prints in a Blue single color.	Prints using all the four-color inks.
Forest	Prints in a Green single color.	
Shout	Prints in a Yellow single color.	
Nostalgia	Prints in a Sepia single color.	

## Note

- If [Zebra] is selected, [Color Adjustment] in "Color" sheet and [Color Balance], [Density], [Contrast] and [Level Correction] in [Detailed Settings] would appear grayed and would not be functional.
- All the selections for single color setting become dimmed and disabled after you remove the checkmark of the Single Color Setting checkbox.

#### Important

• If [Use ICM] is selected in "Color Adjustment" or [Zebra] is selected in "Single Color Setting", a warning is displayed and [Register Special Color] cannot be used. To use [Register Special Color], select an option other than [Use ICM] and [Zebra] when setting colors using the printer driver.

 $\rightarrow$  3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches (P.99)

# 3-4 Using the Detailed Settings Dialog Box

Use the [Detailed Settings] dialog box to enter more detailed settings in the [Color] sheet.

0 00

		Detailed Settings				
Swittcolor SCC-40000 Printing P	verences	Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balar	nce		
Page Setup 2 Color 50 0	Iverlay Settings 🥳 Advanced Settings 🔀 Utility		Cyan	0 🗢 🖌		- + -
			Magenta	0 🔄 🖌 🗌		<b>1</b> 1
91.0mm	Adustrent Method Press		Yellow	0 💠 <		•
8			Black	0 🐳 🖌		•
		ABCDEF 1234567	Brightness	Normal		•
Business Card 91.0 × 55 0mm nage After Overging Settings	Set Pint Quality Input resolution 12006pi 🔹	Level Correction	Density	0 🔹	0	
	Image Color Setting				~	
C. Martin	😗 😥 Zetiza 😝 👘 Qoewa		Contrast	0	U	
	🖨 Aug 😑 Bored					
BCDEE	😝 Base 🖸 Shoul(Y)		Half-tone F	rocess		
234567	😌 Synter 😌 Mytetnige	Shampess		🔿 Dįther	Error Diffusion	
t Settings: Card_01	Set Properts Color Matches(E) Depaid Settings Defaults	0 (None)			D	efaults(D
	OK Cancel 3rov Heb					ordano(g)
				OK	Cancel	Help

## **3-4-1.Color Balance**

[Color Balance] adjusts the density of Cyan, Magenta, Yellow and Black.

Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balan	ce	-		
	Cyan	0			(F)
	Magenta	0	*		P
	Yellow	0 💠			÷.
	Blac <u>k</u>	0	-		F.
ABCDEF 1234567	Brightness	Normal			•
	Density	0		Û	
	Contrast	0	-	0	-
	Half-tone P	rocess		_	
Sharpness	00000 44444	O Dither	666	🖲 💿 Error Diffu	ision
0 (None) 👻					Defaults(D)

Either drag the slider or type a value directly to adjust the density. Set the density between -50 and +50.

The slider represents the standard density setting (0) at the middle. Drag the slider to the left for

a lighter image and to the right for a darker image. When the adjustment process is complete, click [OK].

## Note

- A value can be also entered by clicking the entry box on the left side of the slide bar. Further, click the buttons at both ends of the slide bar to increment or decrement thecurrent value by one.
- Click [Defaults] to initialize the printer to the factory defaults.
- The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

## 3-4-2. Brightness

[Brightness] adjusts brightness if the print results appear too dark or bright as a whole. This adjustment adjusts the brightness of intermediate colors without varying the shading of the darkest and brightest portions.

> ? X **Detailed Settings** Print Image After Changing Settings Color Balance Cvan 0 ≑ Magenta 0 Yellow \* 0 Black 0 \* ABCDEF 1234567 Brightness Norma Brighter Level Correction Density Darker 0 🌲 Contrast Half-tone Process O Dither 2.44 Error Diffusion Shamness 0 (None) Defaults(D) OK Cancel <u>H</u>elp

[Brightness] is selectable from the following three choices:

#### Brighter

#### Nears a monitor having a gamma function of 1.4.

Prints the data bright.

Select this option when the print results are felt too dark.

#### Normal

Nears a monitor having a gamma function of 1.8.

Prints with regular brightness.

Print with this setting first. Then, select [Bright] or [Dark] to suit the print results as needed.

Darker

Nears a monitor having a gamma function of 2.2.

Prints the data dark.

Select this option when the print results are felt too bright.

After the setup, click [OK].

## Note

- The Brightness control is dimmed and disabled after selecting [Use ICM] or [No color adjustment] for Color Adjustment.
- The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

## 3-4-3. Density

Drag the [Density] slider to determine over all density.

Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balar	ce			
	Cyan	0 🚔	-		E F
	Magenta	0	+		<b>1</b>
	Yellow	0 🔹	-		•
	Black	0	-		•
ABCDEF 1234567	Brightness	Normal			*
Le <u>v</u> el Correction	Density	0 🛬	-	0	
	Contrast	0	-	0	-
	Half-tone P	rocess			
Sharpness	20000 44444	O Dither	444	Error Diffusio	m
0 (None)					Defaults( <u>D</u> )

Set the density between -50 and +50.

The slider represents the standard density setting (0) at the middle. Drag the slider to the left for a lighter image and to the right for a darker image. When the adjustment process is complete, click [OK].

## Note

- A value can be also entered by clicking the entry box on the left side of the slide bar.
- Click [Defaults] to initialize the printer to the factory defaults.
- The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

## 3-4-4. Contrast

Drag the [Contrast] slider to determine overall contrast.

Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balan	ce			
	Cyan	0 💠	-		<b>1</b>
	Magenta	0	+		
	Yellow	0 💠	-		+
	Black	0	-		•
ABCDEF 1234567	Brightness	Normal			+
Le <u>v</u> el Correction	Density	0 *	-	0	
	Contrast	0	-	Û	
Sharpness	Half-tone Pr	ocess		Error Diffus	sion
0 (None)					D-((D)

Set the contrast between -50 and +50.

The slider represents the standard contrast setting (0) at the middle. Drag it to the left to get a smoother tone representation with a broader width between the dark and bright edges. Dragging the slider too far will make images look blurred.

The farther the slider is dragged to the right, the darker dark portion of image will appear. Or the whiter, white portion of image will appear. But the tone of colors will be lost. After setting up, click [OK].

## Note

- Contrast refers to the width (tolerable) from the Black portion of an image to the White portion.
- A value can be entered by clicking the entry box on the left side of the slide bar.
- Click [Reset to Defaults] to initialize the printer to the factory defaults.
- The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

## 3-4-5. Halftone Process

Click either the dither or error diffusion check box.

Shamness	Half-tone P	rocess		<ul> <li>Error Diffus</li> </ul>	ion
	Contrast	0 🔹		0	
Level Correction	Density	0 *	-	Û	
1234567	Brightness	Nomal			•
ARCDEE	Black	0	-		E.
	Yellow	0 🜲	-		
	<u>M</u> agenta	0	•		<b>1</b> 1
-	Cyan	0	-		<b>1</b> 60

#### Dither

Arranges dots regularly to represent halftones. This is suitable for printing graphicsor similar materials in which color boundaries need to appear crisp.

#### Error diffusion

Arranges dots randomly to represent halftones. This is suitable for printing pictures that dictate delicate gradation.

After the setup, click [OK].

# 3-4-6. Level Correction

[Level Correction] enhances the contract of images when they appear to have low contract (lacking clear distinction between darkness and brightness) in the print results. Level correction prints the bright portion of a document brighter and the dark portion darker.

To carry out level correct, click-select the [Level Correction] check box. If level correction is not required, uncheck the [Level Correction] check box.

Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balan	ice			
	Cyan	0 ≑	-		- P
	Magenta	0	1		
	Yellow	0	-		+
	Black	0	-		•
1234567	Brightness	Normal			•
Level Correction	Density	0 🔹	-	0	
	Cont <u>r</u> ast	0	-	0	
	Halftone P	rocess	5	<ul> <li>Error Diffus</li> </ul>	ion
(None)			-		Defender(D)

After the setup, click [OK].

## Note

• The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

# 3-4-7. Sharpness

[Sharpness] sharpens images when they appear blurred as a whole in the print results. Sharpness is selectable in a pulldown menu from among 0 (No), 1 (Small), 2(Medium) and 3 (Large).

The setting is displayed on the left side of the slider.

Print Image After Changing Settings	Color Balan	ce			
	Cyan	0	-		(A)
	Magenta	0			
	Yellow	0	-		
	Black	0	-		F.
ABCDEF 1234567	Brightness	Normal			•
Le <u>v</u> el Correction	Density	0 *	-	0	
	Cont <u>r</u> ast	0	-	0	-
	Half-tone P	rocess			
Sharpness	4444	O Dither		Error Diffu:	sion
0 (None) 👻	1.00				
(None)					Defaults(D)

0 (None)	Sharpness correction is not applied
1 (Small)	Sharpness processing is done.
2 (Medium)	Sharpness processing is done.
3 (Large)	Sharpness processing is done.

After the setup, click [OK].

## Note

• The setting result is displayed in the [Output image after setting change] preview window.

# 3-5 Using the Overlay Settings Dialog Box

### The [Overlay Settings] sheet is described below.

In overlay printing, a background image that has been created as a form file beforehand can be overlaid with a foreground image or text on printing.



[1]	Overlay	If this option is checked, overlay printing is enabled.
[2]	Print Mode	Set up for overlay printing or form file creation.
[3]	File Name	Set the file path of a form file used for overlay printing or where to save the form file.
[4]	Form File Information	Displays print setup information about the form file that has been selected in [File Name].
[5]	Comment	Displays the title of the form file that has been selected in [File Name].
[6]	Print the overlay with simple setting	Set whether to perform masking or overlaying on the form file and print data.
[7]	Preview	If this option is checked, the file that has been selected in [File Name] is displayed in a preview.
[8]	Defaults	Reset the overlay setting to the default.

Note

• This function will not work properly if the printer driver of the server is configured for shared use and a client uses that shared printer server to perform printing.

## 3-5-1. Create Form

To create a form file, check that the printer is in the online mode. Create a form file (background image) to be used for overlay printing.

Select [Print] from the application which image data has been created, select "Swiftcolor SCC-4000D" as a printer name and select [Properties], [Advanced Settings] and so on.

Click the [Overlay Settings] tab in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box in the printer driver to open the [Overlay Settings] sheet.

Check [Overlay].

2

Page Setup 🖉 Color 🔅 Overlay S	Settings <u>«</u> Advanced Se	ttings 🛠 Utility
Print Mode	Print the form the	to the file(C)
<u>F</u> ile Name		Reference(B)
Form File Information	Preview	Comment
		Print the overlay with gimple setting
	-	
Current Settings: Current Settings		Defaults(D)

# 3

Next, check [Print the form to the file] in [Print Mode].

Page Setup	2 Color	🔅 Overlay Settings	<u> Advanced</u> Se	ettings	🔀 Utility
V Overlay					
Print Mode	Overlay	Printing	Print the form	to the file	
Eile Name					
					Reference(B
Form File Infor	mation		Preview	_	Comment
			*		
					Print the overlay with simple setting
			-		
					(
ument Settings	: Current Set	tings			Defaults(D



Click [Reference] and set a file name and location to save the form file.

#### File Name: Set any name.

Location to save file: Decide a location to save and create a folder with a name.

✓ Overlay			
Print Mode	Print the form	to the file(C)	
Ele Name			
Fam File Information	Breview	Comment	٥
		Print the overlay with gimple setting	
	+		
Current Settings: Current Settings		Defaults	(D)

## Enter [Comment].

5

The comment can be up to 31 single-byte and double-byte characters long, but its entry can be safely omitted.

Page Setup 2 Color 25 Overlay Settings	Advanced Settings	: 🔀 Utility
V Overlay		
Print Mode	Print the form to the	file(C)
File Name		
		Reference(B)
Form File Information	Preview	Comment
	*	
		Print the overlay with gimple setting
Quiment Settings: Quiment Settings	*	Defaults(D)

- 6 When the setup is complete, click [OK].
- When the print execution window appears again, click [Print]. Prints data to be used as a form file.
- **8** The data is saved in the folder created in Step 4 as a form file.



• Even if multi-page print data is created as a form file, it is also saved as a single file.

## 3-5-2. Overlay Printing

Uses the form file created for overlay printing.

Check [Overlay Printing] in [Print Mode].

Page Setup	😤 Color	Solverlay Settings	4	Advanced Settings	兴 Utility	
V Overlay						
Print Mode						
	Overlay	Printing	OF	rint the form to the fi	le(C)	
Ele Name						
						Reference(B)
Form File Inform	ation			Preview	Comment	
			*	1.11		
					Print th	e overlay with
					šimbie	setting
			-			
Current Settings:	Current Sett	ings				Defaults(D)
Current Settings:	Current Sett	ings				Defaults(D)

2

## Click [Reference] to select the form file that has been created.

Check the selected form file in [Form File Information] and [Preview].

V Overlay Pint Mode	2 Advanced Settings	N Ounty	
Qverlay Printing	Print the form to the f	ie(C)	
Ele Name C.¥Users¥ ¥Desktop¥sample_form.ofe		Reference(	B)
Form File Information	Preview	Comment	
Form ID: 0000 A Pager Form: Card Pager Width: 4724dot(100.0mm) Top Margin: 72dot(13mm) Left Margin: 72dot(13mm) Left Margin: 4534dot(95.0mm) Width of print region: 4534dot(95.0mm) Print Quality: Input resolution 12	R.	Print the overlay with gimple setting	
Current Settings: Current Settings	1	Defaults	(D)

# Click [OK].

## Note

• If a print job is executed with [Print the overlay with simple setting] checked, the form file and print data are overlaid with each other (foundation preserved).

/ Oveday			1.10	
Print Mode				
() Overlay P	hinting	Print the form to the	file( <u>C</u> )	
File Name				
C:¥Users¥ ¥Deskt	op¥sample_form.ofe			Reference(B)
Form File Information		Preview	Comment	
Form ID: Paper Form: Paper Width: Paper Length: Top Margin: Left Margin: Width of print region: Length of print region: Print Quality:	0000 Card 4724dot(100.0mm) 7015dot(148.5mm) 72dot(2.0mm) 4534dot(96.0mm) 6873dot(145.5mm) Input resolution 12	Ret	Print the gimple set	overlay with ting
urrent Settings: Current Settin	+			Defaults(D)

	Print the overlay with simple setting	Handling	Content
[1]	Check Off	Prints data overlaid with a form file by masking (void foundation).	Overlay printing with a void foundation helps preserve the original image colors.
[2]	<section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header>	Prints data overlaid with a form file with the foundation preserved.	Because of overlay printing with the foundation preserved, the image is discolored as its colors overlap the foundation. Processing is made faster than [Standard].

# 4 Executes a print job.

Print data is printed overlaid with the form file.

## Note

- Overlay printing would be disabled if the print setup information differs between the print data and the form file.
- When a document is printed in single color zebra, it can be overlaid with form data even if it varies in the number of colors.
- Overlay printing may not work if the printer driver with which the form has been created has an invalid version or the like. In this case, create a form file with the printer driver to be used for overlay printing.
- [Form File Information] or [Preview] may not be displayed depending on the form file.

# 3-6 Using the Advanced Dialog Box

The [Advanced Settings] sheet is used to set a print Order, Paper feed interval and so on.



### [1] Paper Size Preview

The currently set paper size is displayed in a preview.

#### [2] Form File Information Display

The result of Layout setting and Frame Printing setting is displayed in the preview window.

[3]	Print Order	
	Set the order of printing.	$\rightarrow$ 3-6-1. Print Order (P.89)
[4]		
[4]	Paper feed interval	

## [5] Defaults

Resets [Advanced Settings] to the defaults.

### Important

• The setting of [Print Order] is disabled unless [Enable advanced printing features] is checked in the [Advanced Settings] sheet in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box.

eneral Si	naring Por	ts Advanced	Color Manag	ement	Security	兴 Utility	
Alway:	available						
🔿 Availa	ele from	0:00	- A- - (P-	Τσ	0:00		*
Priorit <u>y</u> :	1	*					
Driver	Swift	color SCC 4000	0			New Driver	_
<ul> <li>Spool</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Sta</li> </ul>	print docu art printing art printing irectly to t	ments so progr after last page i immediately he printer	am finishes p is spooled	printing	g faster	New Diver.	
<ul> <li>Spool</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Print d</li> </ul>	print docu int printing int printing irectly to t	ments so progr after last page i immediately he printer	am finishes p is spooled	orinting	g faster	new priver.	
<ul> <li>Spool</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Print d</li> <li>Hold r</li> </ul>	print docu int printing int printing irectly to t nismatche	ments so progr after last page jmmediately he printer d documents	am finishes p	orinting	g faster	new priver.	
<ul> <li>Spool</li> <li>State</li> <li>State</li> <li>Print description</li> <li>Hold r</li> <li>Print s</li> <li>Keep r</li> </ul>	print docu art printing art printing irectly to t nismatche pooled do printed doo	ments so progr after last page immediately he printer d documents cuments first	am finishes p is spooled	orinting	g faster	new priver.	
<ul> <li>Spool</li> <li>Sta</li> <li>Print d</li> <li>Hold r</li> <li>Print s</li> <li>Keep p</li> <li>Enable</li> </ul>	print docu int printing irectly to t nismatche pooled do irinted doo advanced	ments so progr a after last page i immediately he printer d documents cuments first cuments	am finishes p is spooled	printing	g faster	ne <u>w</u> priver.	

# 3-6-1. Print Order

Decide on whether to start printing from the first or last page.

To print from the first page afterwards, select [Ascend]; to print from the last page upward, select [Descend].

🛆 Page Setup 🛃 Color 😒 Ove	lay Settings 🧹 Advanced Settings	🔀 Utility
91.0mm ទ្រុ		
•Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	Prin 문	t Order 눱j @ Ascend 딘눱j @ Desgend
	Paper feed interval Osec	🗘 🤹
Current Settings: Default Settings		Defaults(D)

# **3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval**

Setting the paper feed interval prevents a printed image to be copied to the back of the next paper.

The default has been set to the "0 sec".

A) Page Setup   Z Color   S Over	ay settings a ruvariceu setunga X Utility
*Business Card 91.0 × 55.0mm	Print Order Plan @ Ascend Page Descend
	Paperfeed piterval Deec
Current Settings: Default Settings	Defaults(D)



• Normally, the slider is at the rightmost position. Three scale marks representing 0 sec, 1 sec, 2 sec, and 3 sec are arranged from right.



\*When performing high-density printing on glossy paper, increase the paper feed interval.

# 3-7 Using the Utility Dialog box

The [Utility] sheet is used to configure settings for the printer maintenance, power saving and so on. Open the [Utility] sheet also when starting the Status Monitor.

- Select [Devices and Printers] from the Start menu in Windows.
- 2 Select and right-click on [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D].
- Select [Printer Properties] and click the [Utility] tab.



#### [1] Light Cleaning

Cleans the Printheads.

 $\rightarrow$  5-1 Cleaning the Printhead (P.135)

#### [2] Medium Cleaning

Performs cleaning somewhat stronger than Light Cleaning.

#### [3] Strong Cleaning

Performs cleaning somewhat stronger than Medium Cleaning.

- $\rightarrow$  5-1 Cleaning the Printhead (P.135)
- $\rightarrow$  5-1 Cleaning the Printhead (P.135)

## 3. How to Use the Printer Driver

[4]	Print Head Position Adjustment	
	Adjusts the Printhead positions.	$\rightarrow$ 5-2 Adjusting the Printhead Position (P.137)
[5]	Output Setting Value	
	Prints the current settings of the printer.	$\rightarrow$ 5-4 Check the Output Setting Value (P.162)
[6]	Sleep	
	Switches the printer to the sleep mode.	→ 3-7-1. Sleep (P.94)
[7]	Sleep Timer Setting	
	Sets the interval of time to elapse to switch to the sleep mode and the power- off state.	$\rightarrow$ 3-7-2. Sleep Timer Setting (P.96)
[8]	Magenta+ ink replacement	
	It is used when changing ink to New Magenta (This function is not used if [SCC-D400M+] in	a lnk [SCC-D400M+]. nk has already been used.)
[9]	Start Status Monitor	
	Displays the Status Monitor window.	$\rightarrow$ 4-1-1. Starting the Status Monitor (P.108)
[10]	Special Settings	
	Configure custom printer settings.	$\rightarrow$ 3-7-4. Special Settings (P.111)
[11]	Pinpoint Color Matches	
	Prints an image with colors close to the desired colors.	$\rightarrow$ 3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches (P.99)
[12]	Moving The Printer	
	Prepares for relocating the printer on the same floor or to another floor in the same building.	$\rightarrow$ 7-1 Moving the Printer (P.188)
[13]	Shipping The Printer	
	Prepares for long-haul transport, as on truck or aboard aircraft.	$\rightarrow$ 7-2 Shipping the Printer (P.192)
[14]	Add Custom Paper Type	
	Allows the user to adjust ink jetting amounts and register them along with the paper type of new paper.	$\rightarrow$ 3-7-5. Add Custom Paper Type (P.114)

#### Important

- The printer must be turned on and connected to the computer to set items in the [Utility] sheet.
- To use [Print Head Position Adjustment], [Sleep Timer Setting], [Special Settings], [Register Special Color], [Moving The Printer], or [Shipping The Printer] displayed on the utility sheet, log in with the Administrator privilege.

If you log in using an authority other than Administrator, you cannot perform the operation. However, you can perform the operation by getting the Administrator privilege temporarily.

# <To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege.>

Windows 7: Open [Printer Properties], and then click [Change Properties] on the [General] sheet. If the "User Account Control" screen appears, enter the Administrator password, and then click [Yes].

Swifter	olor SCC-	40000	Properties			_	-
ieneral	Sharing	Ports	Advanced	Color Management	Security	1 Unity	
-	1.0	Swiftee	lor SCC-400	00			II.
Locati	on:	-				-	
Comn	nent:						
Model		Swiftcol	or SCC-400	00			
Feat	ures						
Coh	on Yes			Paper availab	le		
Dou	ble-sided	£ No		Business Ca	ard 91.0 × 5	5.0mm +	
Stap	le: No						
Spe	ed: 100 pr	pm					
Max	imum re	solution	: 1200 dpi			2	
100	hange <u>P</u> r	opertie	PI	gferences	Print	Lest Page	1
a c							

Windows Vista: Right-click on the printer driver icon, and then select [Run as administrator] $\rightarrow$ [Properties]. If the "User Account Control" screen appears, enter the Administrator password, and then click [Yes].

Course of Street		dakomin 💩 5	A	and the second	oren Bis	der som magnet	
ing lands.	Nativ	Securrents	Status	1 Comments	Location	Model	
Anni Incontry Changed Annthes Indefe:	4	Far Inney					
	*	Niter Swiftcoler SCC 400 Open	0	-	= SCL 40000		
		Run at administr Set as Default Pro Printing Professo Practic Professo	ator ntes CHL-	Cipen     Pause Prin     Sharing_,     Use Prints	ring Office		
		Sharing.		Delete			
		Use Printer Office Refresh		Propeties	6		
	-	Create Shortcut Delete		-	-		
		Ecolema					

# 3-7-1. Sleep

Click [Sleep] to switch the printer to the sleep mode.

### Note

- The printer cannot be switched to sleep mode while it is printing.
- The printer enters the sleep mode automatically when it has been left idle for a certain period of time under normal conditions of operation.
- The printer emerges from the sleep mode and enters the normal state (ready to print) automatically in the following situations:
  - The [POWER] key is pressed.
  - A print job has been initiated from the computer.
  - Cleaning or any other operation has been initiated from the computer.

Check that the printer is in the online mode.

Check that the status lamp is lit.

## 2 Click [Sleep].



3 The confirmation dialog box appears, then click [Yes].



The printer enters the sleep mode with the power lamp blinking.

## Note

• The printer would be inoperable if it is turned off. If so, press the [POWER] key to turn on the printer.

## 3-7-2. Sleep Timer Setting

[Sleep Timer Setting] allows you to set the time for the printer to enter the sleep mode automatically when the printer has been left idle for a certain period of time or when no print data has been received from the printer, and the time for the printer to be turned off subsequently.

## Note

- The time interval setting of the sleep timer cannot be changed while printing is in progress or an error persists.
- [Sleep Timer Setting] defaults to 4 minutes.
- Off Timer Setup defaults to 240 minutes. The setting can be turned "ON" or "OFF."
- Two kinds of setup are available: "Sleep Timer Setup" and "Off Timer Setup."

#### Important

• If a warning is issued when you press the [Sleep Timer Setting], refer to the following:



→ To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege (P.93)

Check that the printer is in the online mode (POWER key lit in Green).

If the printer is not in the online mode, press the POWER key to place it into the online mode.

2	Click [Sleep Tim	er Setting].
---	------------------	--------------

0000 11	Light Cleaning(C)		Start Status Monitor(M)
10000	Medium Cleaning(D)	×	Special Settings(E)
10000	Strong Cleaning(F)		
	Print Head Position Adjustment(H)		
	Output Setting Value(P)	000000	Pinpoint Color Matches(I
Ċ	Sleep(S)	Red	Moving The Printer(O)
() 88:88	Sleep Timer Setting(T)		Shipping The Printer(Q)
00000	Magenta+ ink replacement(K)		Add Custom Paper Type(Z)

The [Sleep Timer Setting] dialog box appears.

## Enter time then click [Send].

3

Enter times for the sleep timer and the off timer from the keyboard or using the  $\square$ ,  $\square$  buttons to the right of the entry box.

Setting sleep timer	Set the time	by the minute	3-1
Sleep Timer Sett	ing:		
Set time	60 👻	1 - 60 (min)	
Off Timer Setting	1:		
Enable off t	timer setting		
Set time	240 🚔	1 - 720 (min)	

Name	Setting range (min.)	Addressable resolution (min.)	Function
Sleep timer setting	1 - 60	1	Setting to enter the sleep mode.
Off timer setting	1 - 720	1	Setting to enter the power-off state (Set the time longer than that for the sleep timer).

## Note

• Off timer setting can be toggled between "Checked (enabled)" and "Unchecked (disabled)" as needed.

4

The confirmation dialog box appears, then click [Yes].



The time set for the sleep timer changes.

## 3-7-3. Pinpoint Color Matches

[Pinpoint Color Matches] allows you to create and register colors for special color matching, as for logo marks.

This setup method matches the printer colors with the colors in need.

## Note

• [Pinpoint Color Matches] is a tool to create a color as similar as possible to the target color when the color of the printed image is different from the target color.

Determine the RGB value (one of 256 tones) of your desired color using Paint. Next, determine the color of the image to be printed using [Pinpoint Color Matches].

- Be sure to determine one target color. [Pinpoint Color Matches] cannot be used for images created through gradation.
- If an image created using the same RGB value as that of the target color exists in the same data, the registered color is also reflected in this image.

### Important

• If a warning is issued when you press the [Pinpoint Color Matches], refer to the following:



→ To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege (P.93)





### Important

- If [Use ICM] is selected in "Color Adjustment" or [Zebra] is selected in "Single Color Setting", a warning is displayed and [Pinpoint Color Matches] cannot be used.
  - $\rightarrow$  3-3-1.Color Adjustment (P.67)
  - $\rightarrow$  3-3-3.Single Color Setting (P.70)

2	[Pinpoint Color Matches] window appears.

ase set	inpoint color matc the color value (F	nes. (GB) in the [Input Co	lor] which matches th	ne pinpoint colors.	
	1				
Dod		0			
<u>i</u> cu					
Green	0	U			
Blue	0 *				
Check Pa	attern	Number of	- Amount of		
Pri <u>n</u> t Gra	adation 2 • Gr	adation Number of Patterns	25 Amount of Change	Normal 👻 📃 H	ligh-density output
					Print
Reprin	t				
If the	e are no desired	colors inside the patt	ern, by reprinting usi	ing the closest color	as the basis you
can re	print with that co	or as the basis.			
Stand	ard Color 0	Select Pattern	1) RG	Reprint(V)	Cancel
	Color Matches Re	gistration			
Pinpoint	ed Color/E)	- Comment			Register
Pinpoint Register	50 50 01 1 1		1		
Pinpoint Register					
Pinpoint Register Register	List				
Pinpoint Register Register	List	Output Value	High-density ou	Comment	-
Pinpoint Register Register No.	List Input Value	Output Value	High-density ou.	Comment	Г
Pinpoint Register Register No.	List Input Value	Output Value	High-density ou.	Comment	E
Pinpoint Register Register No.	List Input Value	Output Value	High-density ou.	Comment	Check Settings(M)
Pinpoint Register Register No.	List Input Value	Output Value	High-density ou.	Comment	Check Settings(M)

3

Read the values of R/G/B from the source image.
- To read the R/G/B values from a source image that is subject to color matching, such as a logo mark, use an image processing program, such as "Paint," which comes standard with Windows.
  - R/G/B value reading procedure (when using "Paint")
    - 1. Start "Paint," which comes standard with your computer (Windows).



2. Open an image for color matching in "Paint."



**3.** Click the image with the [Eyedropper] tool.



4. Next, click [Edit Colors].

						<b>.</b> X
						0
COD CA ● COUNTING     Brushes     COD 公公 ☆ Fill *     COD ☆ 公 ◆ CD ▼	- Size	Color 1	Color 2			Edit colors
Shapes				Colors		

**5.** [Color/Pure Color] displays the colors captured with [Eyedropper], with [Red/Green/Blue] serving as R/G/B values.

Custom colors:		
	Hue: 16	<u>R</u> ed: 255

6. Enter the values of [Red/Green/Blue] into Red, Green and Blue in [Input Colors].

4

Enter the values of [Red/Green/Blue] into Red, Green and Blue in [Input Colors].

ease set the color value (RG	s. B) in the [Input Color] wh	nich matches the p	pinpoint colors	
Input Color				
<u>R</u> ed 246	-			
Green 27	-0			
Blue 125		0		-
Check Pattern				
Print Gradation 2 - Grad	ation Number of 25 Patterns	Amount of Change	ormal 👻 🕅	High-density output
				Print
				The second
Banriot				
Reprint If there are no desired co	lors inside the pattern, b	y reprinting using	the closest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color	lors inside the pattern, b as the basis.	y reprinting using	the closest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	lors inside the pattern, b as the basis. Select Pattern(1)	y reprinting using	the closest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	lors inside the pattern, by as the basis. Select Pattern(1)	y reprinting using	the dosest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	lors inside the pattern, br as the basis. Select Pattern(1) R	y reprinting using	the dosest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 • Pinpoint Color Matches Regist Registered Color(E) a	lors inside the pattern, br as the basis. Select Pattern(1) R stration	y reprinting using	the dosest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 • Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) 0 Desired List	Iors inside the pattern, br as the basis. select Pattern(1) R stration Comment	y reprinting using G -	the closest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) a Register List	ors inside the pattern, b as the basis. Select Pattern(2) R stration Comment	y reprinting using	the closest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) a Register List No. Input Value	ors inside the pattern, b as the basis. Select Pattern(1) R stration Comment Output Value Hij	y reprinting using G	the dosest co	or as the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 • • Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) a Register List No, Input Value	ors inside the pattern, b as the basis. Select Pattern(1) R stration Comment Output Value Hij	y reprinting using G	the dosest co	or as the basis you Cance Register
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regist Registered Color(E) a Register List No. Input Value	ors inside the pattern, b as the basis. Select Pattern(1) R stration Comment Output Value Hij	y reprinting using G	the dosest co	or as the basis you Cancel Register Check Settings(h

5 Print color pallets to designate color samples that represent approximate values 0 to 24.

Click [Print].

coac act	npoint col the color	or matche value (RG	es. B) in the [Input	Color] which mat	ches the pin	point colors.	
Input Co	or						
Red	246	*	-			- 0	-
Green	27		-0-				
Blue	125			0			
Check Pa	ttern						
Print Gra	dation 2	▼ Grad	ation Number	of 25 Amou	nt of Norm	al 🔻 🗖	High-density output(
	-	_	Pattern	s Chan	ye		
							Print
Reprint							
If ther	e are no o	desired co	lors inside the p	battern, by reprin	ting using the	e closest col	or as the basis you
carrie	print with		as the Dasis.				
							1 6
Starida	ard Color	0 *	Select Patte	ern(]) RG	*	Reprint(V	) <u>C</u> ancel
Standa	ard Color	0 ×	Select Patte	ern(]) RG	-	Reprint( <u>V</u>	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint (	ard Color Color Mat	0 ×	Select Patte	ern(]) RG		Reprint( <u>V</u>	) <u>C</u> ancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Registern	ard Color Color Mati ad Color( <u>F</u>	0 × ches Regi	Select Patte	ern(]) RG	-	Reprint( <u>V</u>	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Register Register	ard Color Color Mat ed Color(E List	0 v	Select Patte	ern(])  RG	-	Reprint( <u>V</u>	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Register Register No.	ard Colox Color Mat ed Color( <u>F</u> List Input Val	0 ×	Select Patte	ern(]) RG	ity ou C	Reprint(V	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Register No.	ard Color Color Mat ed Color( <u>F</u> List Input Vali	0 × ches Regi	Select Patte	ern(1) RG	ity ou C	Reprint(V	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Register No.	ard Color Color Mat ed Color( <u>F</u> List Input Val	0 × ches Regi	Select Patte	ern(1) (RG nt ) High-denz	ity ou C	Reprint(V	Cancel
Standa Pinpoint ( Register No.	ard Color Color Mat ed Color(E List Input Val	0 × ches Regi	Select Patte	nnt   High-dens	ity ou C	Reprint(V	) <u>Cancel</u> Register
Standa Pinpoint ( Register No.	ard Color Color Mati ed Color( <u>F</u> List Input Vali	0 *	Select Patte	nt   High-dens	ity ou C	Reprint(V	Ched: Settings(M)

G27 B125 8245 G27 B125 8242 G27 B125 8249 G30 B125 8246 G3
B         91         10         111         12         12           C271112         C20 C27         12         C21 C17         12         C21 C17         12         C21 C17         C21 C17 <td< td=""></td<>
COT ENTITIE 2010 CO27 ENTS 1224 CO24 ENTS 124 CO
15         16         17         18         19         20           G27 B111 R249 G27 B128         R249 G27 E122         R246 G27 E122         R246 G27 E119         R243 G27 E122         R243 G27 E122           22         23         24         24         19         R243 G27 E122         R246 G27 E122         R243 G27 E122
G27 B131 R249 G27 B122 R249 G27 B122 R246 G27 B122 R246 G27 B119 R243 G27 B122 R243 G27 B128 R243 G27 B129 R243 R243 R243 R243 R243 R243 R243 R243

• Before printing a color sample, checking the "High-density output" check box prints the color sample in deeper color.

and the second se					
egister pinpoint color matches		udials mateix		lere	
lease set the color value (RGE	b) in the [Input Color]	which matches t	ne pinpoint co	nors.	
Input Color				-	
Red 246	-			11-	_
Carrier 27 +				-	
green 27					
Blue 125 *					-
Check Pattern				_	
Print Gradation 2  Grada	ation Number of 2 Patterns	5 Amount of Change	Normal	<b>V</b> High-	density output(
				-	_
					Print
Reprint					
Reprint If there are no desired col	ors inside the pattern	by reprinting us	sing the closes	st color as t	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired color can reprint with that color	ors inside the pattern as the basis.	by reprinting us	sing the closes	st color as I	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired colo can reprint with that color	ors inside the pattern as the basis.	by reprinting u	sing the closes	st color as I	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1)	by reprinting us	sing the closes	st color as f	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1)	by reprinting us	sing the doses	st color as t	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired color can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration	by reprinting us	sing the doses	st color as t	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color • Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Rendered Color/6.	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration	by reprinting us	sing the closes	st color as t	Cancel
Reprint If there are no desired color can reprint with that color Randard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) 0	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration	by reprinting us	sing the closes	st color as f	Cancel
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) 0 Beecher List	stration + Comment	by reprinting us	r Repr	st color as i	the basis you
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) 0 Register List	rs inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration T Comment	by reprinting us	Repr	st color as i	he basis you <u>C</u> ancel Register
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Spandard Color (0	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration T Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	t color as t	he basis you <u>G</u> ancel Register
Reprint If there are no desired col- can reprint with that color Standard Color () Propoint Color Matches Regis Register (Let No. Input Value	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	t	the basis you Cancel Register
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color () Propoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(F) Register List No. Input Value	ors inside the pattern she bass. Select Pattern(1) tration Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	st color as t	the basis you       Cancel       Register
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color (0	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration - Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	st color as t	the basis you       Cancel       Register
Reprint If there are no desired col- can reprint with that color Standard Color (0	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(2) tration Cutput Value	by reprinting us	Repr	t Color as t	the basis you <u>Cancel</u> Register ed: Settings(M)
Reprint If there are no desired col can reprint with that color Standard Color () Propoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(F) Register List No. Input Value	ors inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration Comment Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	t (Chi	he basis you Qancel Regigter L L Qelete
Reprint If there are no desired color can reprint with that color Standard Color 0	ars inside the pattern as the basis. Select Pattern(1) tration Comment Comment Output Value	by reprinting us	Repr	t	he basis you Cancel Register Cancel Register Cancel Register Cancel Ca

- If the target color is not found, create a color close to it by performing [Reprint].
  - Prout Color

     Image:

     I
  - 1 Enter the number of the color closest to the target color in [Base Color].
  - 2 Select a color pattern in [Pattern Selection].

Select a color pattern by determining which of RGB needs to be enhanced with regard to the target color.

RG	Change the values of 2 colors, Red and Green, but not Blue.
GB	Change the values of 2 colors, Green and Blue, but not Red.
RB	Change the values of 2 colors, Red and Blue, but not Green.
R Expansion	Change the values of 3 colors across the board and then increase or decrease the value of Red.
G Expansion	Change the values of 3 colors across the board and then increase or decrease the value of Green.
B Expansion	Change the values of 3 colors across the board and then increase or decrease the value of Blue.

### 3 Click [Reprint].

4 If the target color is found in the color samples printed, select a number in [Registered Color] and click [Register].

Reprint If there are no desired can reprint with that or	colors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the closest color as the basis or as the basis.	You
Standard Colc	Select Pattern()) RG   Report(0)  Gan	æ
Piropoint Color M 2 Registered Colo 2 6	Commont	Ma
No. Input V s	Subut Value High-density ou Comment	-
10 11 12 13	Chell Set	10×(Y)

6

Check the printed color pallet and select the number of the color that is closest to "Input Color" from among 0 to 24, enter any name in the "Comment" field and click [Register].

lease set t	npoint col the color	or matche value (RC	es. GB) in the	[Input C	olor] wł	nich match	nes the p	inpoint co	olors.			
Input Col	lor											
Red	246	4 2	-	_	_			_	-1-		-	-
Gréen	27			-0-								
and a											1	
Blue	125	2				U						
Check Pa	ttern											
Print Grad	dation 2	Grad	dation	Number of	F 25	Amoun	t of No	rmal 🔻	THE	ah-den	sity output	(F
	and the			Patterns		Change	e torre		1	-		-
											Print	
Deprint												
Reprint If there	t e are no o	desired co	olors insid	de the pat	tern, b	y reprintir	na usina	the close:	st color	as the	basis vou	
Reprint If there can rep	t e are no o print with	lesired co that colo	olors insid r as the	de the pat basis.	tern, b	y reprintir	ng using	the close:	st color	as the	basis you	
Reprint If there can rep Standa	t e are no o print with ard Colc	lesired co that colo	olors insid or as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr	tern, b	y reprintir .G	ng using	the closes	st color	as the	basis you Cancel	1
Reprint If there can rep S <u>t</u> anda	t e are no o print with ard Colc	lesired co that colo	olors insid r as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr	tern, b	y reprintir G	ng using	the closes	st color	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel	
Reprint If there can rep Standa	t e are no o print with ard Colc	desired co that colo 0	olors insid r as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr	tern, b	y reprintir G	ng using	the doses	st color int( <u>V</u> )	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere	t e are no o print with ard Colc Color M	lesired co that colo 0 1 2 3	olors insid r as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr	tern, b	y reprintir G	ng using	the doses	st color int( <u>V</u> )	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Register	
Reprint If there can rep S <u>t</u> anda Pinpoint C Registere	t e are no o print with ard Colc Color M ed Colo	desired co that colo 0 1 2 3 4 5	olors insid r as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr C <u>o</u> mment	.tern, b h(1) R	y reprintir G	ng using	the closes	st color	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Regi <u>s</u> ter	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Registere	t e are no o print with ard Colo Color M o ed Colo	desired co that colo 1 2 3 4 5 6 6 7	olors insi r as the Sele s atic	de the pat basis. ct Patterr C <u>o</u> mment	tern, b	y reprintir G	ng using	the doses	st color int(⊻)	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Regi <u>s</u> ter	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Register L	t e are no o print with ard Colo Color M a ed Colo E List	0 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8	Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr Comment	tern, b	y reprintir G	ng using	Repr	st color int( <u>V</u> )	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Regi <u>s</u> ter	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Register (	t e are no o print with ard Colo Ed Colo E List Input V	tesired co that colo 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	olors insic r as the Sele	de the pat basis. ct Patterr C <u>o</u> mment	tern, b h(j) R	y reprintir G gh-densit	y ou	Repr Commen	st color int( <u>V</u> )	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Register	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Register (	t e are no o print with ard Colo Ed Colo Ed Colo List Input V	desired co that colo 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12	olors insid r as the Sele s' atic- - ) utpu	de the pat basis. ct Patterr Comment	tern, b h(j) R Hi	y reprintir G gh-densit	y ou	Repr Commer	st color int( <u>v</u> )	as the	basis you <u>C</u> ancel Register	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Register (	t e are no c print with ard Colc Color M a color M a Color M a List List Input V	desired co that colo 1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	olors insid r as the Sele s atic - Dutpu	de the pat basis. ct Patterr Comment	tern, b N(2) R Hi	y reprintir G	y ou	Commer	st color int(⊻)	as the	Cancel Register Settings(W	
Reprint If there can rep Standa Pinpoint C Registere Register (	t e are no ( print with ard Colo Ed Colo E List Input V	desired or that colo 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	olors insid r as the Sele	ie the pat basis. ct Patterr C <u>o</u> mment	tern, b (J) R Hi	y reprintir G	y ou	Commen	int( <u>v</u> )	as the	Cancel Register Settings(Market	

# **7** Displayed in the "Register List."

Click the registered cell to preview it

Tran & Color		
Red 246		
2co		
Green 27		
Blue 125	U	
Check Pattern		
Print Gradation 2 - Grad	ation Number of 25 Amount of Normal	out(
		_
	Prin	t
Reprint		
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the closest color as the basis yo as the basis.	u
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis.	u
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the closest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(3) RG * Reprint(0) Cancel	NU .
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 *	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(1) RG Reprint(1) Cancel	NU
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 • Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(6) 0	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(1) RG Reprint(0) Cancel stration Comment logo Regist	ber
Reprint If there are no desired on can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Registered Color(E) 0	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(1) RG Reprint(0) Cancel stration Comment logo Regist	ber
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Registered Color(E) 0 Register List	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(1) RG Reprint(0) Cancel stration Comment logo Regist	bu
Reprint       If there are no desired co can reprint with that color       Standard Color       Outpoint Color Matches Regis       Register List       No, Input Value	lors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(1) RG Reprint(0) Cancel stration Comment logo Regist Output Value High-density ou Comment	ber
Reprint If there are no desired co can reprint with that color Standard Color 0 * Pinpoint Color Matches Regis Register List Register List No. Input Value 1 R:246 G:27 B:125	ors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis yo as the basis. Select Pattern(3) RG + Reprint(0) Cancel stration Comment logo Regist Output Value High-density ou Comment R:246 G:27 B:125 On logo	ter
Reprint       If there are no desired co can reprint with that color standard Color       Standard Color       Pinpoint Color Matches Regist Registered Color(E)       α       Register List       No.     Input Value       1     R:246 G:27 B:125	Iors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis your as the basis.         Select Pattern(3)       RG       Reprint(0)       Qancel         stration	ter
Reprint       If there are no desired co can reprint with that color       Standard.Color       9       Pinpoint Color Matches Regis       Register List       No.       Input Value       1       R:246 G:27 B:125	Iors inside the pattern, by reprinting using the dosest color as the basis your as the basis.         Select Pattern(3)       RG       Reprint(0)       Qancel         stration	ber s(M)

- Use [Import] and [Export] to print created special colors on any other printer and to print special colors that have been created on any other computer.
- To check to see if a color has been registered or not, click [Printing Preferences]→[Color]→[Set Pinpoint Color Matches] and view [List of registered color].

Al Page Setup 🛃 Color 🚰 Ow	ntay Settings 🤳 🔏 Advanced Set	tings 🔀 Utity	
91.0mm 51.0mm	Color Adjustment Adjustment Method	Photo	•
-Business Card 91 D × 55 0mm Pint Image After Ovanging Settings		Set Print Quality Input resolution 12	50dpi •
	Single Color Setting		
	C in Zebra	😑 📄 Qoelin	
	O AB	e Eorea	
ARCDEE	😑 👘 Rose	😑 🗇 Shout ())	
1234567	Suntat	😑 💼 Notalgua	
Current Settions: Data & Settions	Set Prevalet Color Matche	ortaind Settings	Defaults









# 3-7-4. Special Settings

[Special Settings] is not nessesary use. Set it when using the printer in an extraordinary environment or fanfold paper and so on.

Special Settings	2	×	
Ink Pre-fire On The Paper Auto(A) ON(N)	OFF(E)		-[1]
If you have difficulty ✓ Stain Reduction(R) Mode 1(P) ○ Mode 2(L)	<u>م</u>		- [2]
Send Close(Q)	Help		

[1]	Ink Pre-fire On The Paper	Discharges negligible amounts of inks on the paper surface to keep the Printheads running at all times so that inks will not be stuck in the Printheads (nozzles) for unused colors, thereby preserving Printhead performance. The Auto is default.
	Auto	When the paper length is 95 mm or less," Ink Pre-fire On The Paper" is not performed. When the paper length is 95.1mm or more, "Ink Pre-fire On The Paper" is performed.
	ON	"Ink Pre-fire On The Paper" is performed irrespective of the paper length.
	OFF	"Ink Pre-fire On The Paper" is not performed. (Additional printhead cleaning operation will be made during printing when [Ink Pre-fire On The Paper] is "OFF", causing duration of the print longer.)

[2]	Stain Reduction	Reduces stains on the back of paper. (Select this mode when printing a high-density image.) Check this check box, and then check the "Mode 1" or "Mode 2" check box. By default, this check box is not checked.
	Mode 1	The paper suction force during paper transport is reduced and height of the printhead is increased.
	Mode 2	The paper suction force is further reduced compared to Mode 1.

• [Special Settings] cannot be set while printing is in progress or an error persists.

#### Important

• If a warning is issued when you press the [Special Settings], refer to the following:



→ To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege (P.93)

### Click [Special Settings].

[Special Settings] dialog box appears.

Special Settings	8 ×
Ink Pre-fire On The Paper Auto(A) ON(N)	OFF(E)
If you have difficulty ▼ Stain Reduction(R)	
Mode 1(P) ○ Mode 2(U)	
Send Close(Q)	Help

2 Click the [Special Settings] to use and select or deselect them.

Click [Send].

The confirmation dialog box appears.

# 4 Click [Yes].

The settings are transmitted to the printer to take effect.

5 Click [Close].

# 3-7-5. Add Custom Paper Type

Up to 10 custom paper types can be added, and ink jetting amounts can be set for respective paper types.

1

Click [Add Custom Paper Type].



2

The [Add Custom Paper Type] dialog appears.

aper Type Names	Ink Jetting	Amount	(plain	) —		
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	60		*		
Matte Coated Paper	Magenta	60		*		
Glossy Paper Inkjet postcard	<u>Y</u> ellow	60	-	-		•
Envelope Plastic card	Blac <u>k</u>	50	<u>A</u>	•		۲
	Ink Jetting	Amount	(plura	0		
Custom Paper Type Name	Cy <u>a</u> n	50	-A. 	< [		+
	Magenta	50	*		-	×.
	Yellow	50	-A	•		+
ase Paper Type	Black	50			1	+
Matte Coated Paper =						
Register Delete						

### Type a desired name in the [Custom Paper Type Name] textbox.

Paper Type Names	Ink Jetting	mount (plain)	
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	60 🚔 <	
Matte Coated Paper	<u>M</u> agenta	60 🚔 🗧	
Glossy Paper Inkjet postcard	<u>Y</u> ellow	60 🚔 🖌	+
Envelope Plastic card	Blac <u>k</u>	50 💌	•
(	Ink Jetting	mount (plural)	
Custom Paper Type Name	Cyan	50 🚊 🐔	<u>т</u> , у
	Magenta	50 🔺 ⊀	F.
	Yellow	50 🔺 🗧	(F)
Base Paper Type Matte Coated Paper =	Bļack	50 🔮 🖌 🗖	•
Register			

For example, type "User 1" as a desired name.

4

3

### After typing a desired name, click [Register].

eaper Type Names	Ink Jetting	Amount (plain)	
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	60 🚔 <	(F)
Matte Coated Paper	<u>M</u> agenta	60 🔺 🗧	<b>1</b> 1
Inkjet postcard	<u>Y</u> ellow	60 🚔 🕇	E F
Envelope Plastic card	Black	50 🔹	•
	Ink Jetting	Amount (plural)	 _
Custom Paper Type Name	Cyan	50 🚔 🖌	
User1	Magenta	50 🚔 🛃	<b>F</b>
	Y <u>e</u> llow	50 🚖 🖌 🗌	(F)
Base Paper Type	Black	50 🚖 🖌	
Matte Coated Paper =			
Register Delete			

When a confirmation window appears, click [Yes].

# 5 "User 1" has been registered.

Ink Jetting	Amount	(plain	)		
<u>C</u> yan	60	*	*		t i
<u>M</u> agenta	60		•		•
<u>Y</u> ellow	60	*	-		+
Black	50	*	•		•
Ink Jetting	Amount	(plura	al)		
Cyan	50	A. V	*		۲
Magenta	50				•
Y <u>e</u> llow	50		-		
Black	50				
	Ink Jetting Cyan Magenta Yellow Black Cyan Magenta Ygllow Black	Ink Jetting Amount Evan 60 Magenta 60 Yellow 60 Blads 50 Ink Jetting Amount Cvan 50 Magenta 50 Yellow 50 Bladk 50	Ink Jetting Amount (plain Cyan 60 P Magenta 60 P Black 50 P Ink Jetting Amount (plain Cyan 50 P Magenta 50 P Yellow 50 P Black 50 P	Ink Jetting Amount (glain)         Syan       60       2/4         Magenta       60       2/4         Yellow       60       2/4         Blads       50       2/4         Ink Jetting Amount (plural)       Cyan       50         Cyan       50       2/4         Magenta       50       2/4         Yellow       50       2/4         Bladk       50       2/4	Ink Jetting Amount (plain) Cyan 60 2 4 Magenta 60 2 4 Jelow 60 2 4 Black 50 2 4 Magenta 50 2 4 Magenta 50 2 4 Nagenta 50 2 4 Nagenta 50 2 4 Nagenta 50 2 4

Select [User 1], and then select a paper type from [Base Paper Type].

Select from [Matte Coated Paper], [Glossy Paper], [Inkjet Postcard], [Envelope] and [Plastic card].

Paper Type Names	Ink Jetting	Amount	(plain	)		
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	60	*	4		161
Matte Coated Paper	Magenta	60		•		
Glossy Paper Inkjet postcard	Yellow	60	-	-		E.
Envelope Plastic card User 1	Black	50	<u>.</u>	<u>ج</u>	-	•
	Ink Jetting	Amount	(plura	al)		
Custom Paper <u>T</u> ype Name	Cy <u>a</u> n	50		•		P.
User1	Magenta	50		•		F.
	Y <u>e</u> llow	50	-A. 	•		
Base Paper Type Matte Coated Paper	Black	50	<u>.</u>	•		
Matte Coated Paper Glossy Paper Inkjet postcard Envelope Plastic card						
Register Delete						

6

After selecting a paper type, set ink jetting amounts for respective colors.

aper Type Names	Ink Jetting	Amount (plain)	
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	70 🚔 <	
Matte Coated Paper	<u>M</u> agenta	70 🚔 🗧	<b>-</b> 1
Inkjet postcard	<u>Y</u> ellow	70 🚔 🖌	•
Envelope Plastic card User1	Blac <u>k</u>	70 🔺 🖌	•
	Ink Jetting	Amount (plural)	
Custom Paper Type Name	Cyan	70 🔶 🛃	<b>1</b> (*
User1	Magenta	70 🚔 ⊀ 🗌	E F
	Yellow	70 🌲 🕴	<b></b> (e)
ase Paper Type	Black	70 - 4	
Matte Coated Paper 🔹 🔻			
Matte Coated Paper			

#### Important

- Moving the slide bar to the left decreases the ink jetting amount, and moving the slide bar to the right increases the ink jetting amount.
- Determine the ink jetting amounts optimum for the selected type of paper after conducting the print test several times.

### Click [Register].

Thus, registration is completed.

Paper Type Names	Ink Jetting	Amount (plain)	
Item Names	<u>C</u> yan	70 🔺 🖌	E E
Matte Coated Paper	<u>M</u> agenta	70 🛓 🗧	
Inkjet postcard	<u>Y</u> ellow	70 🚔 🛃	
Envelope Plastic card	Blac <u>k</u>	70 📩 🗶	
User 1			
	Ink Jetting	Amount (plural)	
Custom Paper <u>T</u> ype Name	Cy <u>a</u> n	70 🚖 🛃	۲ <u>ا</u> ا
User1	Magenta	70 🔹 <	
	Y <u>e</u> llow	70 👻 ⊀	
Base Paper Type	Black	70 + 1	
Matte Coated Paper 🔹			
Register Delete			
		-	

9

8

The registered paper type can be confirmed by selecting [Printing Preferences]  $\rightarrow$  [Paper Type] of the printer driver.



# 4. How to Use the Status Monitor

Use the Status Monitor to monitor the status of the printer and status of print jobs in progress.

# 4-1 Displaying the Status Monitor

This section describes how to start and display the Status Monitor.

# **4-1-1. Starting the Status Monitor**

Follow the procedure below to start the Status Monitor.

### Note

- With default, Status Monitor starts automatically every time a print job starts.
- You can also start the Status Monitor as soon as Windows starts up by selecting the specific function in a menu.
- You can store the Status Monitor normally in the taskbar or the task tray and display it only when an error occurs.
  - ➡ 4-1-2. How to Start and Display the Status Monitor (P.121)

Display the [Utility] sheet in the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties dialog box then click Start Status Monitor.

1 1 6000	ight Cleaning(C)		Start Status Monitor(M)
10000	Medium Cleaning(D)	K	Special Settings(E)
0000	Strong Cleaning(F)		
	Print Head Position Adjustment(H)		
	Dutput Setting Value(P)	۵۵	Pinpoint Color Matches(I
0 s	Sleep(S)	Red I	Moving The Printer(O)
() BB:BB	Sleep Timer Setting(T)		Shipping The Printer(Q)
00000	Magenta+ink eplacement(K)		Add Custom Paper Type(Z)



The Status Monitor starts.



## **4-1-2.** How to Start and Display the Status Monitor

The method to start and display the Status Monitor can be set.

#### Start Options

Use either method described below to set the start method.

#### [Start During Printing]

The Status Monitor automatically starts and displays when a print job starts. The Status Monitor closes automatically when the print job ends. (This is the default setting.)

#### [Start With Windows]

The Status Monitor starts when Windows starts.

# 1

Open the Start menu and select the desired start option.

Click either Start During Printing or Start With Windows. A dot symbol (•) marks the currently selected item.



#### View Options

Use one of the methods described below to set the display method.

#### [Start With Popup]

Open and display the Status Monitor window. (This is the default setting.)

#### [Minimize at Start]

Minimize and store the open Status Monitor window on the taskbar.

#### [Start at Task Tray]

Create an icon for the open Status Monitor window and stores the icon in the task tray.

#### [Always Show on Top]

Always display the open Status Monitor window in the foreground even when the windows of other software applications are open.

# 1

#### Open the View menu and select the desired option.

Click Start With Popup, Minimize at Start, or Start at Task Tray. A dot symbol (•) marks the currently selected item.



- If you want the window to display always on the top, click Always Show On Top by attach the checkmark at the beginning of the name of this selection. This setting has no connection with the other settings on the View menu.
- If you select Always Show on Top, the Status Monitor will appear semi-transparent on the screen.
- Even if you select Minimize at Start or Start at Task Tray, the Status Monitor will pop up and display a message when an error occurs. If you click the minimize button in the pop-up window, you can restore Status Monitor to the task bar.

# 4-2 Using the Status Monitor

Use the Status Monitor to not only monitor the status of print jobs in progress but also monitor the status of the printer and the level of the ink supply and quantity of ink collection of the maintenance cartridge.



#### [1] Graphic image of the printer status

Graphic image showing the current status of the printer.

#### [2] Print Status

Current printing status will be displayed with numerical value and indicator

#### [3] Cancel Print Job

Cancel print job in progress.

#### [4] Cleaning

This option is only effective when the Pause key of the printer is pressed for temporary stop.

#### [5] Status Information

Messages to inform you about the current status of the printer.

- 4-2-1. Viewing the Print Status (P.125)
- 2-3-2.Cleaning During Temporary Stop (P.31)

➡ 4-2-2. Viewing the Printer Status (P.127)



# 4-2-1. Viewing the Print Status

Progress of printing can be checked.



#### [Number of Pages]

Displays the number of pages of the document specified for printing.

#### [Copies]

The status of printing of the specified number of copies in progress appears.

For example, If the printing of a three-page document in 10 copies is set, "0001/0010" to "0010/0010" appears while the first page is printed. The progress bar represents the status of printing of the number of copies by page in progress.

#### [Total Copies]

A total count of the specified number of copies printed appears.

#### [Cancel Print Job]

Click to cancel a print job in progress. The printer stops after the current print job is completed.

### Note

• If the print job does not stop even after clicking [Cancel Print Job], press the power key for at least 1 second.

# **4-2-2.** Viewing the Printer Status

Use these features to monitor the status of the printer.



There are Four types of images to keep you informed about the status of the printer.



**Displayed to indicate the normal mode. (Background is blue)** The printer is in the online mode and ready to print.



Displayed when a Offline has been issued. (Background is gray)



**Displayed when a warning has been issued. (Background is yellow)** A warning message is displayed for the Status Information but printing can continue. Troubleshoot the problem as required.



**Displayed when a error has been issued. (Background is red)** An error message is displayed for the Status Information, and printing cannot be done in this status. Troubleshoot the problem as required.



• If the Status Monitor has been minimized, or if it has been placed in the task tray, the Status Monitor will open only when an error occurs.

#### Viewing the Status Information

The Status Information indicates the status of the printer by displaying the following four icons and messages.



#### Information

Display printer related information. Please confirm the content of the messages displayed here.



#### Warning message

Indicate that a warning is being issued for a problem occurred. Read and confirm the content of the message. Printing continues.



#### **Operator Call Error**

These errors are issued for a problem that requires your attention. Confirm the content of the message, and follow the required troubleshooting procedure.

#### 😑 🛛 Fatal Error

These errors are issued for problems that cannot be solved by the user. Please turn the main power switch off. If the error occurs again after switching the printer off and on, make a note of the 4-digit error code, and look for the error code in the troubleshooting section (or any place where the error code is), and to perform troubleshoot by following the instruction. It the error code still appears after troubleshooting, contact dealer.

• If several errors occur at the same time, the most important error is displayed on the top of the list.

After you read the message displayed in the Status Information, follow the procedure below if you want to open another window to learn more details.

1

Select the message to read, and click the [Display the details of the selected status] button.

$\sim$	Status Information
	😸 ink tank door open
Print Status Number of Pages: Copies:	
Total	Display the details of the selected status
	Ink Information
Cancel Print Joh	Maintenance cartridge information

The description window opens and displays a description of the message and provides some troubleshooting advice.



• You can also double-click the item in the Status Information list to open the same information window.

# 4-2-3. Viewing Ink Information

Use these features to monitor the level of the ink in the ink tanks. There are four colors of ink tanks; Black (Bk), Cyan (C), Magenta (M), and Yellow (Y) .

Icons are used to indicate the level of ink in each ink tank.

r	-	-	-	٦
L				I
				ı
r				1
E				

#### Remaining ink level : Ink Full





#### Remaining ink level : Less than about 20%

	Status Information	
	<ul> <li>Online</li> <li>Black ink low</li> </ul>	
Print Status		
Number of Pages:		
Copies:		
lotal	Display the details of the selected status	
	Ink Information	

1	<u>Start</u> Mew Clean	
		Status Information
	Print Status Number of Pages: Copies: Total	
	Total	Display the details of the selected status
		Ink Information

➡ 5-5 Replacing Ink Tanks (P.152)

#### Important

- Do not remove an ink tank unless you must replace it. This could shorten the life of the consumable.
- When replacing an ink tank, do not leave the printer without an ink tank for long periods of time.

### Note

• If "XXXX ink low" is displayed, prepare a new ink tank before "Out of XXXX ink" is displayed, and replace the tank. For how to get a new ink tank, contact the dealer.

# 4-2-4. Viewing Maintenance Cartridge Information

Use this feature to monitor the amount of the ink collected in the maintenance cartridge.

### Note

- The maintenance cartridge is used to collect the ink used for printhead cleaning, etc.
- The [Maintenance Cartridge Level] indicator at the bottom of the [Status Monitor] dialog box indicates the space currently left in the maintenance cartridge.

#### [Maintenance cartridge near full]

When the space left in the maintenance cartridge becomes 20%, a message, "Maintenance cartridge near full," is displayed in the [Status Information] field. Note that printing continues without interruption.



#### [Maintenance cartridge full]

When there remains no maintenance cartridge space to collect ink, a message, "Maintenance cartridge full," is displayed and printing stops after finish printing the on going job. When this message appears, replace the maintenance cartridge with a new one.

➡ 5-7 Replacing the Maintenance Cartridge (P.160)



# 5. Printer Maintenance

This chapter describes how to maintain the printer and keep it in good operating condition.

# **5-1 Cleaning the Printhead**

If your prints appear faint, this could mean that dust and paper dust have clogged the printhead. Clean the printhead to clear clogged nozzles.

### 5-1-1. Cleaning

Clean the clogged Printhead nozzles. Select light, medium, or strong cleaning according to the printing result.

Light Cleaning	Recovery operation performed first when printhead nozzle clogging occurs. (Repeat this operation as required.)
Medium Cleaning	Recovery operation performed when printhead nozzle clogging occurs even after light cleaning is performed. (Repeat this operation as required.)
Strong Cleaning	Recovery operation performed when printhead nozzle clogging occurs even after Medium cleaning is performed. (Repeat this operation as required.)



- During cleaning is in process, do not perform any other operation.
- Cleaning cannot be done during a print job or when an error is occurring.
- If Strong cleaning fails to solve the problem, the printhead may require replacement, or there could be some other problem. Contact your local dealer or call the Tech support.
- Please remember that cleaning consumes ink. Clean the printhead only when necessary.

Open the [Utility] sheet in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box, select [Light Cleaning], [Medium Cleaning] or [Strong Cleaning] and click it.



The confirmation dialog box appears.

# 2

### Click [Yes].



The cleaning begins.

# 5-2 Adjusting the Printhead Position

Although the printer has already been adjusted for optimum performance upon installation, please adjust printhead position if you experience unexpected colors or other problems in your print results.

The printhead adjustment procedure consists of printing a Printhead Position Adjustment Pattern, reading the pattern, and then making some simple adjustments to change the position of the printhead.

#### Important

- Adjustment patterns change depending on the size of the paper being set to printer, although the
  adjustment method is the same.
- The printhead adjustment cannot be done while the printer is printing or after an error has occurred.
- If a warning is issued when you press the [Adjusting the Printhead Position], refer to the following:



→ <To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege.> (P.93)
Opening the [Utility] sheet in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box and click [Printhead Position Adjustment].

	Teaning(C)		Start Status Monitor(M)
0000 M Medium	m Cleaning(D)	S.	Special Settings(E)
Strong	Cleaning(F)		
Print H Adjustr	lead Position ment(H)		
Output	Setting Value(P)	٥٥٩٥	Pinpoint Color Matches(I
Sleep(	S)	892	Moving The Printer(O)
O BB:BB Sleep	Timer Setting(T)		Shipping The Printer(Q)
A A A A A A Mager replace	nta+ink ement(K)		Add Custom Paper Type(Z)



## The [Printhead Position Adjustment] dialog box appears.

djust the position of the print head. his printer requires you to adjust print heads for tw	o types of paper size.	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern.
The current paper size setting is displayed by the ic lease check the current paper size, and follow ste lease refer to the help if you need information on h idjustment.	on on the bottom left. eps 1 through 5. now to perform the	Step 2 Adjust the reference (normally this is not necessary) Politiait Landscape
The details of the adjustme	ent method are here	Return to Sten 1 (J) Proceed to Sten 3
	+32	Cherr 2. Adjust black select
K	+32 	Portrait Landscape
-32	e <b>32</b> +10	Return to Step 2.(L) Proceed to Step 4.(M
	30	Step 4. Adjust the cyan color and yellow color. Portrait Landscape
	30 30 -10	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	30 30 -20	
<u>E. et a de la de la de la de</u>	30	Step 5: Send the adjustment Value. Return to Step 3. Send
TI IT	-32	Step 6. Check the adjustment result.
- 95.0mm 95.1mm		Go to Detailed Print Head Position Adjustment

Click "The details of the adjustment method are here" to view operating procedures from [Help].



3

Check that the printer is not running and perform Step 1 "Print the adjustment pattern."

#### Click [Print].



## 4 When the confirmation window appears, click [Yes].

An adjustment pattern is printed.



The confirmation window appears for you to check to see if the adjustment pattern has been printed correctly or not.

Click [Yes].

Clicking [No] prints the adjustment pattern again.

5

## On confirming successful printout, click [Proceed to Step 3].



#### Note

6

- [Step 2] covers the procedure for adjusting the reference position of the Black Printhead (frame border), but it normally does not require changes.
  - The reference position can be identified from a frame border drawn in the circumference of the Printhead position adjustment pattern. Normally, this frame border is drawn 2.0 mm above the top end of the paper and 2.0 mm from the leftmost end. It should require adjustment if it is found significantly out of position.

#### Note

Step 2 Adjust the reference position of the Black Printhead (frame border)

#### Adjusting the Vertical Direction

If the Black border for K (Black) reference position adjustment is shifted upward, set the value to negative (-). If it is shifted downward, set the value to positive (+). Click [A] (Black) in [Vertical Direction] and drag the slider in the middle to increase or decrease the value.

#### Adjust the Horizontal Direction

If the Black border for K (Black) reference position adjustment is shifted leftward, set the value to positive (+). If it is shifted rightward, set the value to negative (-). Click [W] (Black) in [Landscape Direction] and drag the slider in the middle to increase or decrease the value.



- A value can be entered in the entry box from the keyboard after clicking the entry box.
- Click the 📖, 📼 and buttons to increment and decrement the current value by one.
- As the value is incremented or decremented by one, the Black border moves to the left or right by 0.0212 mm.
- The vertical adjustment range is [-32 to +32] and the horizontal adjustment range is [-30 to +30]; however, each value may not be selected within the overall range depending on the current setting. Select a value between the a mark and the r mark displayed on the slider scale.

## Step 3. Adjust Black color.

Check [B] Vertical Direction and [X] Horizontal Direction in adjustment pattern [K] (Black) and read and enter the value at the point of their intersection with the Magenta line.

djust the position of the print head.		I make when the second second
his printer requires you to adjust print beads for two type	s of paper size	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern
he current paper size setting is displayed by the icon on lease check the current paper size, and follow steps 1 ti lease refer to the help if you need information on how to djustment.	the bottom left. hrough 5. perform the	Step 3. Adjust the reference (normally this is not necessary).
The details of the adjustment met	th <u>o</u> d are here	
	-	Return to Step 1.(J) Proceed to Step 3.
	+32	
32		Step 3. Adjust the black color.
K	+20	Portrait Landscape
-32	+10	Return to Step 2(1) Proceed to Step 4(4)
Y +32	TIN	The start to step 2. E
-32		Step 4. Adjust the cyan color and yellow color.
01111111111111111		Portrait Landscape
K     ) ) )	10	
c 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	-10	
0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 30		
* 1133335555566	-20	Star 5 Sand the adjustment Value
		Distance of the adjustment visite:
		return to step 3. Send
II II	-32	Step 6. Check the adjustment result.
		Go to Detailed Print Head Position Adjustment
- 95.0mm 95.1mm		

## Note

7

- If [B] Vertical Position or [X] Horizontal Direction is selected, the visible point in the adjustment pattern in [Head Position Adjustment] dialog box is marked in a Red border.
- To review the last setting entered, click [Return to Step 2].

#### Adjust the Vertical Position

Read the value of the apparently smoothest (stepless) interconnection of the Magenta and Black lines in the head position adjustment pattern.

In the following case, for example, the adjustment value is "0":



Check (B) in [Vertical Direction] in Step 3 in the [Head Position Adjustment] sheet and enter "0."

#### Adjust the Horizontal Position

Read the value of the apparently smoothest (stepless) interconnection of the Magenta and Black lines in the head position adjustment pattern.

In the following case, for example, the adjustment value is "+18":



Check (X) in [Horizontal Direction] in Step 3 in the [Head Position Adjustment] sheet and enter "18."

## Note

- Click the is and is buttons to increment and decrement the current value by one.
- The vertical adjustment range is [-32 to +32] and the horizontal adjustment range is [-30 to +30]; however, each value may not be selected within the overall range depending on the current setting. Select a value between the A mark and the r mark displayed on the slider scale.

8

Having entered the adjustment value, click [Proceed to Step 4].



### Step 4. Adjust Cyan and Yellow

Check [C] Vertical Direction and [Y] Horizontal Direction in adjustment pattern [C] (Cyan) and read and enter the value at the point of their intersection with the Magenta line.

Read adjustment pattern [Y] (Yellow) in the same manner. ([D] Vertical Direction, [Z] Horizontal Direction)

djust the position of the print head.		I make the second second
his printer requires you to adjust print heads for two types	of paper size.	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern
he current paper size setting is displayed by the icon on th lease check the current paper size, and follow steps 1 th lease refer to the help if you need information on how to p djustment.	he bottom left. rough 5. perform the	Step 2. Adjust the reference (normally this is not necessary). Portrait Landscape
The details of the adjustment meth	od are here	
	-	Return to Step 1.(J) Proceed to Step 3.
	+32	The Control of the second
+32		Step 3. Adjust the black color.
K	+20	
C		
-32	+10	Return to Step 2.(L) Proceed to Step 4.(
γ		
36-	0 🚍	Step 4. Adjust the cyan color and yellow color.
K 0 ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (		Portrait Landscape
0	-10	
C		
¥ 9111111111111111111111111111111111111	-20	
11111111111111111130		Step 5. Send the adjustment value.
		Retum to Step 3. Send
	-32	Stan 8. Thack the adjustment result
- 95.0mm 95.1mm		Go to Detailed Fint Head Position Adjustment

### Note

g

- If [C] or [D] Vertical Direction or [Y] or [Z] Horizontal Direction is selected, the visible point in the leftside adjustment pattern is marked in a Red border.
- To review the last setting entered, click [Return to Step 3].

#### Adjust the Vertical Position

With regard to Cyan and Yellow, read the value of the apparently smoothest (stepless) interconnection of the Magenta and other colored lines in the Printhead position adjustment pattern.

In the following case, for example, the Cyan adjustment value is "+18": Adjust Yellow in the same manner.



Check [C] or [D] in [Vertical Direction] in Step 4 in the [Head Position Adjustment] sheet and enter "18."

#### Adjust the Horizontal Position

With regard to Cyan and Yellow, read the value of the apparently smoothest (stepless) interconnection of the Magenta and other colored lines in the Printhead position adjustment pattern.

In the following case, for example, the Cyan adjustment value is "+18": Adjust Yellow in the same manner.



Check [Y] or [Z] in [Vertical Direction] in Step 4 in the [Head Position Adjustment] sheet and enter "18."

#### Note

- Click the 📥 , and 💌 buttons to increment and decrement the current value by one.
- The vertical adjustment range is [-32 to +32] and the horizontal adjustment range is [-30 to +30]; however, each value may not be selected within the overall range depending on the current setting. Select a value between the a mark and the r mark displayed on the slider scale.

# **10** When the entry is complete, click [Send].



11

When the transmission confirmation window appears, click [Yes].



The adjustment value is transmitted to the printer to adjust the head positions.





13

Click [Print] again to print a head position adjustment pattern and check that the head positions have been adjusted correctly.

Idjust the position of the print head.		Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern.
This printer requires you to aquis print needs for two types the current paper size setting is displayed by the icon on th Please check the current paper size, and follow steps 1 th Please refer to the help if you need information on how to p idjustment.	or paper size. he bottom left. rough 5. perform the	Step 2. Adjust the reference (normally this is not necessary) Portrait Landscape
The details of the adjustment meth	od are here	
	+32	Return to Step 1.(J) Proceed to Step 3.
	102	Step 3. Adjust the black color.
K +32	110	Portrait Landscape
-32+32	+20	
-32	+10	Return to Step 2.(L) Proceed to Step 4.(N
Υ		
-32	0	Step 4. Adjust the cyan color and yellow color.
K IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		Portrait Landscape
0	-10	
0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 30 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 30		
Y 1111111111111111111111	-20	Step 5. Send the adjustment value.
		Return to Step 3. Send
	-32	Sten 6. Check the adjustment result
		Go to Detailed Print Head Position Adjustment
- 95.0mm 95.1mm		Land Dergen ( This read - Dermit Adhement)

- Check the adjustment pattern printed. If the line at the "0" position in each color appears smoothly linked, go to Step 14.
- If the lines appear out of alignment, retry from Step 1 afterwards.
- To perform finer tuning, click Step 6 [Go to Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment].
- → 5-1 Cleaning the Printhead (P.135) 5-3 Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment (P.153)

# 14 When the head position adjustment process is complete, click [Close].

djust the position of the print head. his printer requires you to adjust print heads for two type	s of paper size.	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern.
he current paper size setting is displayed by the icon or lease check the current paper size, and follow steps 1 lease refer to the help if you need information on how to djustment.	the bottom left. hrough 5. perform the	Step 2. Adjust the reference (normally this is not necessary) Port/ait Landscape
The details of the adjustment me	th <u>o</u> d are here	Return to Step 1.() Proceed to Step 3.
[ es.	+32	Step 3. Adjust the black color.
K 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	+20	Portrait     Landscape       Image: Constraint of the state
C	+10	Return to Step 2.(L) Proceed to Step 4.(
·-32	o —	Step 4: Adjust the cyan color and yellow color. Portrait Landscape
K	-10	
1	-20	
		Step 5. Send the adjustment Value.           Return to Step 3.         Send
II II	-32	Step 6. Check the adjustment result.
- 95.0mm - 95.1mm -		Go to Detailed Print Head Position Adjustment

The head position adjustment completion confirmation message is displayed.



#### Click [Yes].



# **5-3 Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment**

These adjustment procedures are intended for maintenance personnel who have completed regular [Printhead Position Adjustment] but seek more detailed adjustment.

### Note

• Fine tuning of the printhead cannot be performed for business cards and card-size paper. Apply settings under postcards.

1

Click Step 6 [Go to Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment] without clicking [Close] in Step 13 [Printhead Position Adjustment].



The [Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment] dialog box appears.

Click [The details of the adjustment method are here] to view operating procedures from [Help].

		The details of the adjustment method are here
	+8	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern.
-8 0 *8 (1)	+4	Step 3. Adjust the black color.
-8 0 +8 	0	Return to Step 1 () Proceed to Step 3
-8 0 +8 (3)	4	
	-8	Step 4 Send the adjustment value.
-95 linm - 95 linm -		

2

Check that the printer is not running, and then click [Print] in Step 1 "Print an Adjustment Pattern."

		The details of the adjustment method are here
	+8	Step 1. Print the adjustment pattern.
-8 0 +8 (1)	+4	Step 2. Adjust the black color
-8 0 +8 (2)	0	Return to Step. 1.(j) Proceed to Step 3. Step 3. Adjust the over and yellow colore.
-8 0 +8	4	
	-8	Step 4. Send the adjustment value. Return to Step 2. Send
III III		

When the confirmation window appears, click [Yes].



#### Detailed adjustment pattern



4

5

The confirmation window appears to see if the adjustment pattern has been printed correctly or not. Click [Yes].



Clicking [No] prints the adjustment pattern again.

#### Step 2. Adjust Black color.

Check [1], [2], and [3] in adjustment pattern [K] (Black) and read and enter the value at the point of their intersection with the Magenta line.

or decails of the adjustment method, please refer	to neip.	
		The details of the adjustment method are nere
	+8 *	Step 1. Punt the adjustment pattern. <u>Print</u>
-8 0 *8		Step 2. Adjust the black color.
	+4	● K) 🌢 I 🖙 2 0 🛨 3 0 🔄
-8 0 +8		Return to Step 1.(J) Proceed to Step 3.
(2) -++		Gtep 3, Adjust the syan and yellow colors.
-8 0 *6	4	M 1 0 2 0 3 0
(3)+	÷.	Step 4. Send the adjustment value.
	-8 .	Return to Step 2. Send
ui II		
- 85i0mm 95.1mm -		

#### Note

- Selecting [1], [2], and [3] will show the points to view in Red in the adjustment pattern in the [Detailed Prinhead Position Adjustment] dialog box.
- To review the last setting entered, click [Return to Step 1].

6

Having entered the adjustment value, click [Proceed to Step 3.]



7

### Step 3. Adjust Cyan and Yellow.

Check [1], [2] and [3] in adjustment pattern [C] (Cyan) and [1], [2] and [3] in adjustment pattern [Y] (Yellow) and read and enter the value at the point of their intersection with the Magenta line.

		The details of the adjustment method are here
	+8 *	Step 1: Pint the adjustment pattern     Ennt
	+4	Step 2 Adjust the black color. (6)
-8 0 +8 (2)	0	Return to Step 1 (j) Proceed to Step 3, Step 3, Adjust the cyan and yellow colors.
-8 0 +8 -++	4	
	-8 ,	Step 4. Send the adjustment value.
-15.0mm 95.1mm -		

## Note

- Selecting [1], [2], and [3] will show the points to view in Red in the adjustment pattern in the [Detailed Prinhead Position Adjustment] dialog box.
- To review the last setting entered, click [Return to Step 2].

# 8 When the entry is complete, click [Send].

		The details of the adjustment method are here
	+8 *	Step 1 Pint the adjustment pattern, <u>Ennt</u>
-8 	+4	Step 2' Adjust the black color.
-8 0 +8 (2)	0 =	[Return to Step 1.(j)] Proceed to Step 3 Step 3. Adjust the cyan and yellow colors.
-8 0 +8 (3) ++	-4	
	-8 .	Step 4. Send the adjustment value.
- 95 Dmm - 95.1mm -		

9

The transmission confirmation window appears. Click [Yes].



The adjustment value is transmitted to the printer to adjust the head positions.



## Click [OK].



11

Click [Print] again to detailed adjustment pattern and check that the head positions have been adjusted correctly.



Check the adjustment pattern printed. If the line at the "0" position in each color appears smoothly linked, the adjustment process is completed.

If the lines appear out of alignment, retry from Step 1 afterwards.

# 12 Click [Close].



A message is displayed to confirm the completion of the printhead position fine-tuning.

# 13

## Click [Yes].



# 5-4 Check the Output Setting Value

Prints the setting values that are set in the printer.Use dedicated color card printer paper having a paper size of business card (91 mm × 55 mm) or larger to perform ""Output Setting Value."

#### Note

- If paper size is smaller than business card (91 mm × 55 mm), the print result may appear void or the setting values not printed on the paper.
- Check that paper has been loaded. When the postcard size or envelope size is selected, the print pattern is printed on three sheets. When the business card size is selected, the print pattern is printed on six sheets.
- Printer settings cannot be printed while printing is in progress or an error persists.

# 1

Open the [Utility] sheet in the [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Properties] dialog box and click [Output Setting Value].



The confirmation dialog box appears.

## 2 Select [Output to Printer] or [Output to File] and click [Proceed]. Select [Output to Printer] in most situations.



The current setting values set in the printer are printed.

#### How to Read Output Setting Value



\*When [Output to File] is selected, setting values are saved in a text format.

# 5-5 Replacing Ink Tanks

When the remaining ink level becomes low, the message "XXXX ink low" is displayed on the Status Monitor to notify you that the corresponding ink tank will soon be out of ink. When the ink tank has become out of ink although printing can be continued, the message "Out of XXXX ink" is displayed and printing stops.

The printer has tanks of four colors: black (Bk), cyan (C), magenta (M), and yellow (Y). Confirm the message displayed on the Status monitor and replace the ink tank which has become out of ink.



- For safety, keep the ink tank out of the reach of children.
- If ink is accidentally ingested, contact a physician immediately.

#### Important

- To maintain printhead quality, printer stops operating before it is completely out of ink. Therefore, a small amount of ink remains in ink tank to be replaced.
- To get a good printing result, use up each ink tank within six months of the first opening the package.
- Do not remove an ink tank unless you must replace it. This could shorten the life of the consumables.
- Complete the ink tank replacement procedure as quickly as possible. Do not leave the printer with ink tanks removed.
- An ink tank left in a high-temperature place can deform. However, there is nothing wrong with its functions.
- It is recommended that ink tanks be stored in a place where the temperature does not rise extremely.

#### Note

- When the message "XXXX ink low" is displayed, get a new ink tank as soon as possible. For how to get a new ink tank, contact your local dealer.
- To maintain the best printing quality, please use only Swiftcolor SCC-4000D ink tanks. When purchasing ink tanks, check that they bear the following model numbers:

Black Ink Tank:	SCC-D400BK
Cyan Ink Tank :	SCC-D400C
Magenta Ink Tank:	SCC-D400M+
Yellow Ink Tank:	SCC-D400Y

• The positions of the ink tanks are as shown below.



The printer is designed so that ink tanks cannot be inserted in wrong ink tank slots. Do not attempt to insert ink tanks in wrong ink tank slots forcibly.

## Open the ink tank door.







**3** Pull out an empty ink tank slowly.





Take out a new ink tank from the box.



#### Important

• Do not touch the ink outlet and terminal to prevent soiling of the the surrounding work area, damage to the ink tank, and poor printing.



• Never apply excessive force nor drop an ink tank. Ink can stain clothing and the work area.

# 5 Load a new ink tank.

Slowly insert the ink tank deeply into the ink tank slot with the correct side up.



# Caution

• There are sharp pins in ink tank slots. Never put your fingers into this area.

6 Close the ink tank cover securely.



Close the ink tank door.



# **5-6 Replacing the Maintenance Cartridge**

When the maintenance cartridge is filled with the collected ink, the message "Maintenance cartridge full error" is displayed in the status information area on the Status Monitor, and the printer stops.

Get a new maintenance cartridge, and replace it with the old one.

# Caution

- For safety, keep the Maintenance Cartridge out of the reach of children.
- If ink is accidentally ingested, contact a physician immediately.

#### Important

- To prevent ink from leaking from a used Maintenance Cartridge, avoid dropping the cartridge or storing it at an angle. Otherwise, ink may leak and cause stains.
- Ink adheres to the top of the Maintenance Cartridge after it has been used. Handle the Maintenance Cartridge carefully during replacement. The ink may stain clothing.

#### Note

• When purchasing maintenance cartridges, check that they bear the following model number: Maintenance cartridge : Model name : MC-01 When the maintenance cartridge is filled with collected ink, an error message is displayed on the Status Monitor.

- Thy and the	
Print Status Number of Pages:	
Copies:	
Total	Display the details of the selected status

2 Open the maintenance cartridge door.



# **3** Draw out the maintenance cartridge slowly.



#### Important

• When removing the maintenance cartridge full of ink, take care not to incline or drop it. The spilled or scattered ink may stain the floor or clothing.

4

Take out a new maintenance cartridge from the box.


5 Insert a new maintenance cartridge.





Close the maintenance cartridge door.



The error message on the Status Monitor disappears, and printing starts.

7

Put the used maintenance cartridge in the plastic bag included with the new maintenance cartridge and properly dispose it.



# 5-7 Used Ink Tanks

#### Important

• Dispose the used ink tank in accordance with local laws and regulations.



# 5-8 Used Maintenance Cartridge

#### Important

• Dispose the used maintenance cartridge in accordance with local laws and regulations.



## **5-9 Cleaning the Printer**

As the printer is used, ink and paper dust will be collected inside the printer. If the interior of the printer becomes dirty, this will cause prints to become dirty or interfere with smooth paper feeding. Clean the printer periodically to keep the printer in optimum working condition.

Dampen a clean cloth in a weak solution of water and detergent, wring it out thoroughly, then use it to clean the exterior covers of the printer.

## Warning

• When cleaning the outside and inside of the printer, do not use a flammable solvent such as thinner, benzene, or alcohol. A fire or electric shock may result.

## Caution

• Be sure to remove the power plug from the outlet before cleaning the printer. This can prevent personal injury or damage to the printer if you make a mistake during cleaning.

1

Press the power key for at least 1 second to put the printer in the power-off state. Remove the power plug from the outlet.

# 2 Open the ink tank door.



Press the upper unit release lever to open the upper unit.



178

3

Using a dry cloth, thoroughly remove ink, dust, and paper dust around the transport area.



## Note

Δ

- Do not use paper towels or tissue paper. Cut paper chips or paper dust entering the printer may cause failures.
- When cleaning the transport belt, turn the jam recovery dial in the paper feed direction.

5 After completion of cleaning, close the upper unit, then close the ink tank door.



This section describes how to troubleshoot problems when the printer is not operating correctly.

If you cannot solve the problem by following these troubleshooting procedures, please contact the dealer where you purchased the printer or the nearest contact your dealer.

## 6-1 Error or Warning Messages

The Status Monitor will display a warning or error message when a problem occurs in the printer while it is idle or during a print job.

#### Note

- When an error message is displayed, the printer automatically enters the offline mode. Even after recovery of the error, the printer may not enter the online mode automatically depending on the type of the error. In this case, press the power key to place the printer to the online mode forcibly.
- If multiple errors occur simultaneously, all the relevant messages will appear in the Status Monitor. Take remedial actions to revolve the individual errors.

#### Operator Call Error Messages

Error Message	Problem	Solution
Upper unit open.	The upper unit is open.	Close the upper unit.
Ink tank door open.	The ink tank door is open.	Close the ink tank door.
Maintenance cartridge door open.	The maintenance cartridge door is open.	Close the maintenance cartridge door.
Pinch roller cover open.	The pinch roller cover is open.	Close the pinch roller cover.
Paper empty 1.	Paper has run out.	Load paper. → 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)

Error Message	Problem	Solution
Paper Length different 1 to 3.	The print data and the length of the paper loaded do not match.	Check the print data and the length of the paper loaded.
Paper Width different.	The width of the paper loaded differs from the paper size setting of the application software and the printer driver.	<ul> <li>If wrong paper is loaded or the side guide is displaced, replace with correct paper or move the side guide to the correct position.</li> <li>→ 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)</li> <li>If the application software and the printer driver have been configured incorrectly, click [Cancel Print Job] in the Status Monitor.</li> <li>Set the correct paper size and then retry the print job.</li> </ul>
Paper jam 1 to 26.	The transport path, feeder, or delivery area is clogged with paper.	Reload the paper. If the problem recurs, contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer. $\rightarrow$ 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16) $\rightarrow$ 6-2 When Paper is Jammed (P.186)
Feeder tray overloaded	The amount of paper loaded in the feeder tray is over the limit.	Load paper so that the number of sheets is less than the specified amount and the top surface of the paper stack is lower than the paper loading limit mark. $\rightarrow$ 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)
Stacker overloaded	Paper ejected to the auto stacker has exceeded the upper limit.	Remove the ejected paper.
Stacker inspection	Long paper such as an envelope or postcard is stationary in the transport area or paper eject slot.	Remove the jammed paper. → 6-2 When Paper is Jammed (P.186)
Paper retention 1 to 4	Paper still remains after removal of jammed paper.	Open the upper unit and check the Transport area. $\rightarrow$ 6-2 When Paper is Jammed (P.186)

Error Message	Problem	Solution
Feed error 1	The paper is not fed.	Reload the paper and try again. $\rightarrow$ 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)
Feed error 2	Paper has been pulled out of the feeder tray during printing.	Do not pull out paper during printing. If it is absolutely necessary to pull out paper during printing, press the PAUSE key on the operation panel to stop printing temporarily, and then pull out paper.
Thick feed lever position error 1	The thick paper transport lever is not pulled.	Pull the thick paper transport lever. $\rightarrow$ To those who use thick paper (P.23)
Thick feed lever position error 2	The thick paper transport lever is held at the upper position.	Push in the thick paper transport lever. $\rightarrow$ To those who use thick paper (P.23)
XXXX ink empty.	The XXXX ink has run out.	Replace with a new ink tank. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
XXXX ink tank setting error.	The ink tank is not installed correctly.	Install the ink tank again. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
XXXX ink tank abnormality 1 to 5.	The ink tank is abnormal.	Replace with a new ink tank. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Maintenance cartridge full.	The maintenance cartridge is full with collected waste ink.	Replace with a new maintenance cartridge. $\rightarrow$ 5-6 Replacing the Maintenance Cartridge (P.171)
Maintenance cartridge setting error.	The maintenance cartridge is not installed correctly.	Install a maintenance cartridge again.
Maintenance cartridge abnormality 1 to 4.	The maintenance cartridge is abnormal.	Replace with a new maintenance cartridge. $\rightarrow$ 5-6 Replacing the Maintenance Cartridge (P.171)
Update error 1 to 4.	The firmware update has failed.	Retry the update. If the same operator call recurs after taken remedial actions to it, contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer.

Error Message	Problem	Solution
Data mismatch 1.	Invalid data has been received from the host.	Check the cable connection and retry.
Data mismatch 2.		Check the cable connection and retry.
Data mismatch 3.		Check the form file information and retry.
Data mismatch 4.		Check the paper shape setting of the printer driver before rerunning the print job.
Memory full.	Memory is lack of capacity because the size of form data for overlay printing is too large.	Cancel printing and create the Form Data again. $\rightarrow$ 3-5-1. Create Form (P.81)
Overlay data error.	Form overlay data is invalid.	Check the cable connection and retry.
XXXX ink level unknown.	The remaining ink cannot be detected.	<ul> <li>Replace with a new XXXX ink tank. Continued printing could cause damages to the printer. To continue printing, press the printer [PAUSE] key for 5 seconds or longer.</li> <li>In this case, the remaining ink sensor function is disabled, and the state of the function having been disabled is logged.</li> <li>(XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)</li> <li>→ About the remaining ink level detection function (P.197)</li> </ul>
Unknown error.	An unknown operator call has occurred.	Contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer.
Connected to a model other than Swiftcolor SCC-4000D.	Connected to a printer other than the Swiftcolor SCC- 4000D.	Connect to the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D.
Unable to communicate with the printer bidirectionally.	The computer and the printer cannot use bi-directionally communication.	Check the printer power and make sure that the printer is in the online or sleep mode, or restart the computer and printer.

Error Message	Problem	Solution
XXXX ink low.	The Bk/C/M/Y inks are diminishing.	Prepare new ink tanks. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Maintenance cartridge level low.	The maintenance cartridge will be full with collected waste ink soon.	Replace with a new maintenance cartridge.
Change XXXX printhead.	Time to replace the Bk/C/M/Y Printheads.	Note the message and contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Change purge unit.	The purge unit has passed the time for replacement.	Note the message and contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Change Blade Cleaner.	The blade cleaner has passed the time for replacement.	Note the message and contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Change transport unit.	Time has come to replace the transport unit.	Note the message and contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Stopping XXXX ink level detection.	The remaining XXXX ink level sensor function is disabled.	Install a new ink tank to return to normal. (XXXX represents Black, Cyan, Magenta, or Yellow.)
Unknown warning.	An unknown waning has been received.	Check the printer driver version.

## Warning Messages

#### Fatal Error

Error Message	Problem	Solution
Service call error (#****)	An irrecoverable error has occurred.	Turn the power off, then back on. If the same error recurs, note the message and contact the dealer from whom this printer was purchased or our contact your dealer.

# 6-2 When Paper is Jammed

If a paper jam occurs during printing, printing is suspended and the error message "Paper jam X" is displayed.

Remove the jammed paper following the procedure described below.



#### Open the ink tank door.



2

Press the upper unit open lever to open the upper unit.



While turning the jam recovery dial in the direction to eject paper, remove jammed paper from the transport section.



If paper cannot be removed in step 3, remove it by turning the dial in the direction to eject paper with pinch roller opened.



4

5 After removing paper, return the pinch rollers to their original positions, close the upper unit, and then close the ink tank door.



Set paper again.

 $\rightarrow$  1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)



Printing restarts.

#### Note

- To cancel the print job, click [Cancel Print] in the Status Monitor.
  - $\rightarrow$  2-2 Canceling Print Jobs (P.34)

# 6-3 Printer Not Operating Correctly

Check the following points if the printer is not operating correctly.

#### Power off

Check Point	Solution
Power key is at the off.	Press power key.
Printer power cord unplugged.	Make sure that the power cord is plugged in completely.
Power supply not providing power.	Connect another device to the power supply to confirm that the outlet is providing power. If you cannot restore the printer to normal operation, call the dealer or contact the nearest contact your dealer.

#### Printer Does Not Start or Printer Stops During Print Jobs

Check Point	Solution
Upper unit or ink tank door or maintenance cartridge door is open. (Please confirm a status monitor.)	Close the upper unit or ink tank door or maintenance cartridge door and make sure that it is closed tightly.
Printer is not connected to the computer.	Check a cable and make sure that it is connected to the printer and the computer.
Paper is not loaded correctly.	Load paper correctly. $\rightarrow$ 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)
The ink tanks are not installed correctly.	Check the ink tanks and make sure that the are installed correctly. → 5-5 Replacing Ink Tanks (P.164)
The Swiftcolor SCC-4000D printer driver is not selected on the computer.	Make sure that the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printer is selected when you start the print job.
Print data contains an image with a large capacity.	If you see the STATUS lamp flashing, this means that data is processing. Wait for the processing to finish.

Check Point	Solution	
The printer has been printing for a long period.	If the printer prints for a long period the printhead may overheat. To protect the printhead the Status Monitor will display a printhead overheated messages and stop the print job. Just wait for the printhead to cool down.	
The print destination port setting is wrong.	Open the printer driver Properties and make sure that the port setting is correct. If the port setting is not correct, shut down Windows, switch off the computer, then reconnect to the selected port. Follow the procedure below to check the port setting. Open the printer driver Properties window then click the Ports tab. If you are using a USB connection, make sure that USB nnn (nnn represents the numbers) is selected for the port setting.	
Check whether a test pattern is printed.	Try printing a Printhead Position Adjustment pattern or output setting values by selecting the corresponding button on the [Utility] sheet of the printer driver. If the test pattern is printed, check the application software settings, operation method, and print data content. If the test pattern is not printed, contact your dealer.	
The problem is occurring on the computer.	Shut down the computer and switch it on again then try to print. Be sure to cancel the print job if it remains after the computer is restarted.	
Check whether an option other than "None" is selected for the system standby setting or sleep mode setting of Windows running on the computer.	When printing data, select "None" for the system standby setting or the setting of the time before entering the sleep mode of Windows running on the computer. Note that data sent from the computer is discarded when the computer is recovered from the standby mode. To configure the system standby setting or sleep mode setting, click the [Start] button of Windows, select [Control Panel] from the [Start] menu, and then select [Power Options].	

Check Point	Solution
Check if the ink Tank has ink left but still displays	Detach the ink Tank and attach it again.
[Run Out of Ink].	If the problem persists, contact your dealer.

## Printing Does Not Stop/ Data is Not Sent/ Settings are Not Sent from Utility/ Status Cannot be Recognized on the Status Monitor.

Check Point	Solution
Check whether Print Queue window (in which print data order is registered) remains.	Stop the printer temporarily to cancel printing from the Status Monitor, or delete the Print Queue window data. Next, reboot the computer. If you carry out setting related to printing and utility when the printer is connected to the network, a data transfer error occurs between the computer and the printer due to antivirus software. As a result, Print Queue window data may be sent to the printer multiple times or not be sent to the printer.
	If this symptom occurs, contact your dealer.

Check Point	Solution
Check whether non-exclusive paper is used.	Use paper exclusively for the color card printer. Using non-exclusive paper can result in a paper jam or failure. → 3-2-6.Paper Type (P.61)
The edge of the paper is folded or curled.	If the leading edge of the paper is folded or curled it will not feed correctly. This could also cause a paper jam.
Check whether the side guide is set in accordance with the paper width.	Set the side guide in accordance with the paper width. → 1-4 Paper Loading Procedure (P.16)
The transport area is dirty.	A transport area smeared with paper dust or ink would be more prone to a paper jam or any other trouble. Clean the transport area if it is found dirty. $\rightarrow$ 5-9 Cleaning the Printer (P.177)

## Paper is Not Feeding Correctly

#### Status Monitor Does Not Start

Check Point	Solution
The Status Monitor setting is incorrect.	<ul> <li>With some Status Monitor settings, printer errors will not be displayed and the Status Monitor will not start. Open the printer driver Utility sheet then click Start Status Monitor. Set the details after the Status Monitor starts.</li> <li>→ 4-1 Displaying the Status Monitor (P.119)</li> </ul>
Check whether the printer and computer can communicate interactively.	If the printer and computer cannot communicate interactively, the Status Monitor does not start even if printing starts. Open [Properties] of the printer driver, click the [Port] tab, and then check that the [Enable bidirectional support] check box is checked. If the problem persists after taking the above action, uninstall the printer driver, and then reinstall the printer driver.

# 6-4 Print Results Are Unsatisfactory

If the print results are not what you expect, confirm the following points.

#### Back of Paper Stained

Check Point	Solution
Check whether the paper transport section is stained with ink.	Clean the Transport area. $\rightarrow$ 5-9 Cleaning the Printer (P.177)

#### Random, Bizarre Characters Are Printed

Check Point	Solution
A Interface cable is disconnected.	Check a Interface cable and make sure that it is connected to the printer and the computer.
The Swiftcolor SCC-4000D printer driver is not selected on the computer.	Make sure that the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printer is selected when you start the print job.
Check whether a test pattern is printed.	Try printing a Printhead Position Adjustment pattern or output setting values by selecting the corresponding button on the [Utility] sheet of the printer driver. If the test pattern is printed, check the application software settings, operation method, and print data content. If the test pattern is not printed, contact your dealer.

#### Slow To Print

Check Point	Solution
Check whether the number of copies is specified on the application side.	If the number of copies is specified on the application side, new print data is sent each time printing of a copy is completed, requiring a long time to finish printing the specified number of copies. In such a case, specify the number of copies on the printer driver side.

Check Point	Solution
Check whether the paper feed interval is set.	Open the Advanced Settings sheet of the printer driver and Adjust the Paper feed interval.
	$\rightarrow$ 3-6-2. Paper Feed Interval (P.89)

## Print Quality Is Poor

Check Point	Solution
Streaks appear on the printout.	If you are using the printer at low temperature(14 degrees Celsius or less), open the Utility sheet in the printer driver then select the [Low Temperature Print Mode] in the [Special Settings]. $\rightarrow$ 3-7-4. Special Settings (P.111)
White spots due to missing colors.	Open the Utility sheet of the printer driver and perform Cleaning. → 5-1-1. Cleaning (P.135) If the problem persists even after performing [Cleaning] contact a dealer from which printer was purchased or our sales shop.
Printout is faint.	See the action corresponding to the above- described check points "Streaks appear on the printout" and "White spots due to missing colors."
Misalignment of colors appears.	Open the Utility sheet of the printer driver and perform Printhead Position Adjustment. → 5-2 Adjusting the Printhead Position (P.137)
Half-toning is rough.	Select [Error diffusion] for [Half-tone Process] in [Detailed Settings] on the Color sheet of Printing Preferences of the printer driver. But the printing speed becomes slow. $\rightarrow$ 3-4-5. Halftone Process (P.76)
Color unevennesses appear around characters or in solid imaging areas.	<ul> <li>Set either of the following, and retry printing.</li> <li>Set Halftoning of Color sheet in Error Diffusion in Options of Printing Preferences of the printer driver. But the print speed becomes slow.</li> <li>→ 3-4-5 Halftone Process (P76)</li> </ul>

Check Point	Solution
The overall print quality is poor.	The use of dedicated paper for color card printer is recommended. Using paper that is not dedicated may possibly lower the quality of printing, and further lead to jamming and malfunctions.

## Printed Colors Appear Strange

Check Point	Solution
Wrong colors are printed.	Open the printer driver and adjust the Detailed Settings dialog box and the Color sheet. $\rightarrow$ 3-3 Using the Color Dialog Box (P 66)
	$\rightarrow$ 3-4 Using the Detailed Settings Dialog Box (P72)
	Open the Control Panel of your computer, and then check whether the settings in the [Display Properties] or [Screen Properties] are correct. Especially when the setting of the display type or gamma coefficients is wrong, correct colors are not displayed on the display.
The overall print quality is poor.	It is recommended that paper exclusively for the color card printer be used. Using non-exclusive paper can degrade the print quality. It can also results in a paper jam or failure. → 3-2-6.Paper Type (P.61)
Image is too bright or too dark.	<ul> <li>Select "Photo", "Contains graphics", or "Use ICM" in [Color Adjustment] on the Color dialog box in the [Print Settings] dialog box of the printer driver, and then set [Brightness] or [Level Correction] in [Detailed Settings].</li> <li>→ 3-3 Using the Color Dialog Box (P.66)</li> <li>→ 3-4 Using the Detailed Settings Dialog Box (P.72)</li> </ul>
The image contrast is too strong or weak.	Adjust the contrast in [Detailed Settings] on the Color sheet of Printing Preferences of the printer driver. $\rightarrow$ 3-4-3. Density (P.74)

Check Point	Solution
Image is faint.	Try setting the sharpness in [Sharpness] in
	Preferences of the printer driver.
	$\rightarrow$ 3-4-7. Sharpness (P.78)

## Printing In One Color

Check Point	Solution
The printer driver is set to print in single color.	Open the Color sheet in the printer driver and check the Single Color Setting. $\rightarrow$ 3-3-3.Single Color Setting (P.70)
The software application is set up for single color printing.	Some software applications may allow you to print in one color. Check the print settings in the software application on the computer.

#### Others

#### About the remaining ink level detection function

The ink tanks of this printer have a remaining ink level detection function to prevent running out of ink during printing and printer failures.

 $\rightarrow$  4-2-3. Viewing Ink Information (P.131)

When an ink tank which has become empty is reinstalled, the remaining ink level detection function can be disabled.

#### Important

- When printing is performed with the remaining ink level detection function disabled, damage to the printer or a trouble can result.
- Swiftcolor/Kanematsu is not responsible for any failure resulting from the use of an ink tank refilled with ink.
- If the remaining ink level detection function is disabled for an ink tank, the remaining ink level detection function for the ink tank cannot be enabled again. To enable the remaining ink level detection function, replace the ink tank with a new ink tank exclusively for Swiftcolor SCC-4000D.
- If the same ink tank is removed and inserted many times, the joint between the ink tank and printer can be damaged and consequently ink can leak from the ink tank, damaging the printer.

The procedure for disabling the remaining ink level detection function is described below.

1

A warning error message is displayed on the [Status Monitor].

0	Status Information
Print Status	8 Black ink level unknown
Number of Pages:	
Copies:	
Total	Display the details of the selected status
	Ink Information
Cancel Red Job	Maintenance cartridge information

Clicking "Display the details of the selected status" displays the Status Monitor Help.



# 2 Press down the

Press down the [PAUSE] key on the operation panel for at least 5 seconds.



3

The remaining ink sensor function is disabled and the Status Monitor displays [Stopping XXXX ink level detection].

The remaining ink indication in the ink information is grayed out.

	Status Information  Coline  Stopping black ink level detection
Print Status Number of Pages: Copies: Total	Display the details of the selected status

Note

• The message on the [Status Monitor] disappears and the corresponding color lamp on the printer goes out when a new ink tank for Swiftcolor SCC-4000D is installed in the printer.

# 7. Appendix

# 7-1 Moving The Printer

After moving the printer on the same floor or to another floor, install it properly following the procedure described below.

# Caution

• This product weighs about 25 kg. Two persons standing at the front and back of the printer must lift the printer while holding the left and right handles provided at the bottom of the printer. If you lift the printer in an unnatural posture, you may drop it, resulting in an injury. In addition, if you hold the feeder section or auto stacker (paper eject section), you may damage it or drop the printer, resulting in an injury.



• Always hold the printer level and carry it slowly. If ink is spilled inside the printer while moving it, this could cause a fire or serious electrical shock or damage the printer.

Right-click on the printer driver icon, select [Printer Properties], and then click the [Utility] tab.





#### Important

• If a warning is issued when you press the [Moving the Printer], refer to the following:



→ <To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege.> (P.93)

## Click [Yes].

The printer begins preparations for relocation, taking approximately 2 minutes.



## Note

Δ

• This preparation for moving the printer discharges ink inside the purge unit to prevent the ink from taking inside the printer.

When the printer has finished preparations, press and hold the power key for at least 1 second to turn off the printer.

- $\rightarrow$  1-3-2. Switching the Printer Off (P.15)
- 5 Disconnect the interface cable and power cord.
- 6 Move the printer.

Important

- Do not move the printer with the upper unit, ink tank door, or maintenance cartridge door open. The printer can break down or it can be damaged.
- To move the printer on the same floor or within the same building in, the ink tanks need not be removed. If the ink tanks are removed before moving the printer, ink can leak from the needle sections in the ink tank slots which may result clothes and surrounding work area stained.

## 7-2 Shipping the Printer

When transporting the printer over a long distance, be sure to observe the following precautions.

# **A**Caution

- Call the Tech support for advice before you ship the printer a long distance or move the printer by car or truck where it may be subjected to shock and vibration. Moving the printer without the proper preparation could subject it to shocks and vibrations which could damage the printer and cause a fire.
- This product weighs about 25 kg. Two persons standing at the front and back of the printer must lift the printer while holding the left and right handles provided at the bottom of the printer. If you lift the printer in an unnatural posture, you may drop it, resulting in an injury. In addition, if you hold the stacker section or auto stacker (paper eject section), you may damage it or drop the printer, resulting in an injury.



• Always hold the printer level and carry it slowly. If ink is spilled inside the printer while moving it, this could cause a fire or serious electrical shock or damage the printer.

Check that the warning message "Maintenance cartridge near full" is not displayed on the Status Monitor.

When the warning message is displayed, replace the maintenance cartridge with a new one, and then start the work.

2 Right-click the printer driver icon, select [Printer Properties], and then click the [Utility] tab.

Click [Shipping The Printer].



#### Important

• If a warning is issued when you press the [Shipping the Printer], refer to the following:



→ <To perform the above-mentioned operation using an authority other than the Administrator privilege.> (P.93)



#### Click [Yes].

The printer begins preparations for relocation, taking approximately twenty minutes.



5

Pack the printer properly following the instructions of the dealer or service technician before transporting it.

Important

- Do not move the printer with the upper unit, ink tank door, or maintenance cartridge door open. The printer can break down or it can be damaged.
- Before transporting the printer, be sure to execute [Shipping The Printer]. If ink tanks are removed before [Shipping The Printer] is executed, ink leaking from the ink tank slots can stain your clothes and surrounding work area.

# 7-3 Software Uninstallation

This section explains how to uninstall the printer driver that has been installed on the computer. Before uninstalling the printer driver, close all applications running, check that all print jobs have ended.

	_	
1		

Select [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D]-[Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Printer Driver Uninstall] from [All Programs] or [Programs] on the [Start] menu.

The uninstaller starts.



• The [User Account Control] dialog box may appear at this time. If it appears, click [Yes] or [OK].

# 2

#### Click [Start].

Please read the folk	owing cautions.
Cautions Uninstalling. Finish	Uninstallation of the Swiftcolor SCC-4000D printer driver will begin. If the printer is connected, disconnect the printer cable. If there are any other applications running, close them. If a document is printing, wait for the print job to finish then proceed to the next step.
3

4





The [Changing System Settings] dialog box appears.

Click [Yes] to restart Windows.



#### Note

• If [No] is clicked, be sure to restart the computer before installing the printer driver again.

# 7-4 Network Utility

This utility software is for searching and configuration of settings for printers connected to the network.

#### Important

- Install Network Utility in the course of installing the printer driver for network.
- When using Network Utilities, be sure to configure settings as Network Administrator.
- Select [All programs] dialog box from the [Start] menu in Windows.
- 2 Click [Swiftcolor SCC-4000D Network IF].





## Click [Utility].



Searches for the printer on the network.

Settings Display	Environmenta) s	ettings Help		
🛱 Til 🕹 🛓	2 2 2 0	etecting printers		
Printer	Locatio	Detecting printers on the network. Cancel	Idress	

The [Network Utility] starts.

# 7-4-1. Toolbar



[1]	Printer setting	Opens the Network Settings window for a printer.
[2]	LAN status	Displays communication status of wired LAN.
[3]	Serch for printers again	Searches for a printer again.
[4]	Environmental setting	Configures environmental settings of the Network Utilities.
[5]	Show utility help	Displays the Utility Help screen
[6]	Utility closed	Ends the Network Utilities.

# 7-4-2. Menu bar

Configure settings on the [Network Utility].

Inter         Location         Version         IP Address         MAC address           CC-4000D         04,01         169.254.100         00:02:20:00:80:45	P Address MAC address 69-254.100 00:02;20:00:80:45		×	1 2	Til 😌
CC-4000D 04.01 169.254.100 00:02;20:00:80:45	69:254:100 00:02:20:00:80:45	IP	on Versio	Locati	rinter
		16	04.01		CC-4000D

# 7-4-3. Settings

Click [Settings] on the menu bar and open the pull-down menu.



#### Printer Settings

Clicking [Printer Settings] on the pull-down menu opens the password setting dialog.

	Enter the printer pas	ssword.
Passv	vord:	

-Default password is [admin].

2

After entering password, click [OK].

### Printer Setting window is displayed.

3

The [Basic settings], [TCP/IP], and [LOG settings] are described.

rinter Settings		_	3 X	
Basic settings TCP/IP Log set	ings			
- Specify the location				
Location:			- #	
Set password			$\equiv$	
Change password			<u>+</u>	
Enter new password:	E		-	
Re-enter new password:	T		_	
	OK	Cancel	Help	

[1]	Specify the location	Enter the location of printer installed. *The number of characters that can be entered: 0 to 15 characters
[2]	Set password	Change the current password. *The number of characters that can be entered: 0 to 8 characters

rinter	Settings	2 ×	
Basic	settings TCP/IP Log settings	1	
C	Get IP address automatically		<b>—</b> [1]
6	C Specify IP address:		1.1
	<u>I</u> P address;	169 . 254 . 100 . 100	[0]
	<u>S</u> ubnet mask.	255 . 255 . 0 . 0	—[2]
L	Default gateway.	169 . 254 . 100 . 100	
L	Default gateway.	169 . 254 . 100 . 100           DK         Cancel         Help	
	Default gateway	169 . 254 . 100 . 100	
[1]	Default gateway.	169 . 254 . 100 . 100       DK     Cancel       Help       Automatically obtains IP add	dress.
[1]	Get IP address automatically Specify IP address	DK Cancel Help Automatically obtains IP add Specify IP address.	dress.
[1]	Get IP address automatically Specify IP address	Automatically obtains IP add Specify IP address. Select this option when IP a	dress. Iddress is not obtain

Basic settings TCP/IP Log settings		1	
Printer log			[1
Destinatic			
Save			
			<u> </u>
Destinatio			F2
	_		_ [s

[1]	Printer log	Enter the location for the printer log file to be saved.
[2]	PC log	Check this check box when performing output for logs of the Network Interface Library to a file.
[3]	Destination	Enter save location for computer log.

4 Click [OK].

#### Printer LAN status

Check the network status obtained from the printer.

1

Click [Printer LAN status] on the pull-down menu.

Displays Network Status from printer.

Transmitted packet count:	40	
Transmitted error packet count:	0	
Transmitted collision count:	0	
Receiving packet count:	1331	
Receiving error packet count:	0	

2 Click [OK] after confirmation.

1

MAC address filter (Used when more than 2 printers are being used.)

Click [MAC address filter] on the pull-down menu.

2 Password Setting dialog appears. Enter the password and Click [OK].

	Enter the printer pa	assword.
Pas	sword:	
	OK	Consol

\* Default password is "admin". However, if password is changed in [Basic Settings]of [Settings], that password will be in effect.

# 3

When [Mac address filter] window is displayed, check this check box and enter settings.



- Add/Delete Adds and deletes MAC address.
- [4] MAC address list Displays the list of MAC addresses registered to the printer.

Click [OK] after setting is completed.

[3]

4

#### Restore the factory default value

Click [Restore the factory default value] on the pull-down menu.

2 Password Setting dialog appears. Enter the password and Click [OK].

	Ent	er the printer pa	ssword.	
F	assword:	lí.		

\* Default password is "admin". However, if password is changed in [Basic Settings] of [Settings], that password will be in effect.

**3** When the confirmation window opens, click [Yes].

# 7-4-4. Display

Click [Display] on the pull-down menu.

Toolbar				
ter Status bar		IP Address	MAC address	
40 Find the printer again	F5	169.254.100	00:02:20:00:80:45	

\* The check box is checked by default. If unchecked, the [Tool bar] and [status bar] will be displayed.

# 7-4-5. Environmental settings

Click [Environmental Settings] on the pull-down menu.

SCC-4000DUtilit Settings Display	y Environmental settings	_		
Printer	Utility environmental settings Time-out settings	ress	MAC address	
SCC-4000D	04.01	169.254.100	00:02:20:00:80:45	

#### Utility Environmental settings

#### Click [Utility environmental settings].





- [1] Specify IP address for searching
   [2] Add/Delete
   Check OFF: Searching for a printer on the network.
- [3] List of IP address Add or Delete IP addresses on search list.
- [4] Restore default Displays the list of IP addresses to search for.
- [5] Enter IP address Reset the search range setting to default.

[Display items]

2

Select setting items to be displayed during start-up.

Ran	ge of searching Display items
	- Select the display item
	✓ Version
	I▼ <u>I</u> P address
	I MA⊆ address
	Restore default

\* Printer name is always displayed so it is not included in the selectable items.

Click [Environmental Settings] on the menu bar for a pull-down menu and click [Time-out Settings].

#### Time-out settings

Configure setting to extend the duration of network time-out to avoid resending print data.

1

Click [Time-out settings] on the pull-down menu.



Check the [Extend Time-out Value] check box and click [OK].



# 7-4-6. Help

#### Click [Help] on the pull-down menu.

		Californi alla A	
🗿 Till 🥹 🧟	2 🛛	Utility help F1	
Printer	Location	Version Information	ddress
SCC-4000D		04.01 109.254.100 00	:02:20:00:80:45

#### Utility Help

Click to display the Help of this utility.

#### Version information

Click to display the version of this utility.

After finished with all settings, click [Settings] on the menu bar and click [Utility closed] on the pull-down menu.



Click [Yes] to end.

# **Specifications**

#### Printer

Printing method	Inkjet
Print colors	Full color
Output resolution	1200dpi×1200dpi
Printing speed	Business Card, ID-1(Plastic card): 100 sheets/min.
	Postcard: 45 sheets/min.
	Envelope: 28 sheets/min.
	Plastic card(3.5x5.5inch):50 sheets/min
Printable area	107.8 mm (W) × 297.0 mm (L)
Print margin	Top/Bottom: 1.5 mm
(in relation to paper	Left/Right: 2.0 mm
transport direction)	
Print head	5,097 nozzles (effective nozzles)
Paper	Matte coated paper, Glossy paper, Inkjet postcard, Envelope, Plastic
	card
Paper size	Width: 85 mm - 120 mm
	Length: 49 mm - 300 mm
Paper thickness	Business Card, Postcard, Plastic card: 0.21 mm - 0.76 mm
	Envelope: 0.28 mm - 0.32 mm
Paper feed capacity	Business Card, Postcard: 500 sheets (thickness 0.245 mm or less)
	Card/Plastic card (length :148mm or more): 100 sheets
	Envelope: 100 sheets
Ink used	Aqueous dye-based ink
	Yellow (Y), Magenta (M), Cyan (C), and Black (Bk)
Interface	Hi-Speed USB, 1000BASE-T/100BASE-TX/10BASE-T
Operating noise	About 58dB (A) or less
Installation environment	Temperature: 15 degrees Celsius - 30 degrees Celsius
	Humidity: 10% - 80% (with no condensation)
Power supply	AC 100-240 V, 50/60 Hz
Power consumption	Maximum power consumption: 229 W
	Sleep mode: 8.5 W
Dimensions	595 mm (W) × 410 mm (D) × 464 mm (H)
Weight	About 25 kg (without ink tanks and printhead)

- This printer employs a dye ink system. The colors in printouts may deteriorate due to chemical reactions caused by exposure to normal infrared light, nitrous or sulfuric fumes and other oxidizing chemicals in the air.
- To conserve the consumption of printing paper, the printer can print on the reverse side. To print on both sides of paper, use paper suited for duplex printing.

# Index

#### Index

# Α

Adjusting the Printhead Position	137
Auto stacker	7

# В

Brightness	73

# С

Cleaning	135
Color Balance	72
Contrast	75
Create Form	81
Custom Paper Size	44, 56

## D

Density 74	
Detailed Printhead Position Adjustment .	153

# Ε

Error or Warning Messages	181
---------------------------	-----

## F

Fatal Error	185
Favorites	43
Feeder tray	6

# Н

Halftone Process	76
------------------	----

## I

Ink Information	131
	1.21

# L

LAN port	5
Level Correction	77
Light Cleaning	36

# Μ

Maintenance Cartridge Information	133
Medium Cleaning	36
Moving The Printer	92

## Ν

Network Utility	211
-----------------	-----

# 0

Operation panel	5
Operator Call Error Messages	181
Orientation	44
Others . 197	
Overlay Printing	84

## Ρ

Paper delivery slot	7
Paper Feed Interval	89
Paper is Jammed	186
Paper Size	43
Paper Size Preview	43
Paper Type	44
Pinpoint Color Matches	99
Print Orientation Preview	43
Print Status	125

# R

Rating plate	7

# S

Sharpness	78
Shipping the Printer	205
Shipping The Printer	92
Side guide	6
Side guide lever	6
Sleep 94	
Sleep Timer	96
Special Settings	111
Status Monitor	124
Strong Cleaning	36

# Т

Thick paper transport lever	7
-----------------------------	---

# U

Upper unit	6
Upper unit release lever	8
USB port	5

# V

Viewing the Printer Status	127
	12/

# W

Warning Messages 1	185
--------------------	-----

**Contact Information** 

Swiftcolor/Kanematsu KANEMATSU USA INC. 100 Randoloph Road Somerset, NJ 08873 USA URL : www.swiftcolor.com E-mail: info@swiftcolor.com

Kanematsu G.m.b.H Duesseldorf Head Office Oststrasse 34, D-40211, Duesseldorf, Germany URL : www.swiftcolor.com E-mail: info@swiftcolor.com